gjﬁ TaAHOE FOREST HosPITAL DISTRICT

2015-12-16 Board Quality Committee

Dec 16, 2015 at 12:00 PM - 01:30 PM

Eskridge Conference Room



Meeting Book - 2015-12-16 Board Quality Committee

AGENDA

12/16/15 Quality Agenda Page 3
ITEMS 1 - 4 - See Agenda
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

10/20/15 DRAFT Minutes Page 5

6. ITEMS FOR COMMITTEE DISCUSSION AND/OR
RECOMMENDATION

6.1. Quality Committee Goals 2015 & Charter
Charter Page 8
Goals Page 9
6.2. Patient & Family Centered Care (PFCC)
6.2.1. PFCC Update Page 10

6.3. Patient Satisfaction Surveys

Ambulatory Surgery Survey Page 13
Emergency Dept IVCH Survey Page 15
Emergency Dept TFHD Survey Page 17
Inpatient Services Survey Page 19
MSC Survey Page 21
Outpatient Services Survey Page 23
6.4. Beta Disclosure & Communication Program Page 25

6.5. Annual Board Policy Review

ABD-20 Patient Satisfaction Page 30
6.6. Board Quality Education

Governance Institute White Paper Page 33

ITEMS 7 - 9 - See Agenda



TAHOE

FOREST
HospriTAL
é& . DISTRICT QUALITY COMMITTEE

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

AGENDA

Wednesday, December 16, 2015 at 12:00 p.m.
Eskridge Lobby Conference Room, Tahoe Forest Hospital
10121 Pine Avenue, Truckee, CA

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL
Greg Jellinek, M.D., Chair; John Mohun, Board Member

CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA

INPUT — AUDIENCE

This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Committee on items which are not on the
agenda. Please state your name for the record. Comments are limited to three minutes. Written comments
should be submitted to the Board Clerk 24 hours prior to the meeting to allow for distribution. Under
Government Code Section 54954.2 — Brown Act, the Committee cannot take action on any item not on the
agenda. The Committee may choose to acknowledge the comment or, where appropriate, briefly answer a
question, refer the matter to staff, or set the item for discussion at a future meeting.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF: 10/20/2015 .......ccccociririieiieieienieneeieseeiteeeee e ATTACHMENT

ITEMS FOR COMMITTEE DISCUSSION AND/OR RECOMMENDATION

Quality Committee Goals 2015 & Charter......cccceieeeeereencrienerrenerrenerenseerenseerensessaneenes ATTACHMENT
The Quality Committee Charter and 2015 Goals were approved by the full board at the June 30, 2015
meeting. Informational for reference during the meeting if needed.

Patient & Family Centered Care (PFCC)
6.2.1. Patient & Family Advisory Council Update .......cccceevererrenereencreencerenncreennenes ATTACHMENT
An update will be provided related to the activities of the Patient and Family Advisory
Council (PFAC).

Patient Satisfaction SUIVEYS......ccceiveeereerertenieteenieteeceeenerenneseessessnsessasesssssessassssenne ATTACHMENTS
Press Ganey patient satisfaction surveys will be reviewed.

Beta Disclosure & Communication Program.........cccccceeiiirinnniininnneiinnneninniensnenees ATTACHMENT
The Committee will be provided an updated on the lessons learned at this program including the
Care for the Caregiver program.

Annual Board Policy REVIEW......ccceueiiiiiuniiiiiieniiininmiiiiiieiiiniemmsma. ATTACHMENT
6.5.1. ABD-20 Patient Satisfaction

Review the policy and discuss if this should continue as a BOD policy or be moved to an

administrative AGOV policy.

Page 1 of 2
3 of 56



QUALITY COMMITTEE - Agenda Continued
Wednesday, December 16, 2015

6.6. Board Quality EdUCAtioN ......cccceiiieiiiieiiiiiiiecieiiereeeeereenesenesrensesenesesensssnensessnnnenes ATTACHMENT
Discuss the Governance Institute white paper on Maximizing the Effectiveness of the Board’s Quality
Committee. The committee will review and discuss topics for future Board quality education.

7.  REVIEW FOLLOW UP ITEMS / BOARD MEETING RECOMMENDATIONS

8. NEXT MEETING DATE
The date and time of the next committee meeting, Wednesday, February 17, 2016, will be
proposed and/or confirmed.

9. ADJOURN

*Denotes material (or a portion thereof) may be distributed later.

Note: It is the policy of Tahoe Forest Hospital District to not discriminate in admissions, provisions of services, hiring, training and employment
practices on the basis of color, national origin, sex, religion, age or disability including AIDS and related conditions.

Equal Opportunity Employer. The meeting location is accessible to people with disabilities. Every reasonable effort will be made to

accommodate participation of the disabled in all of the District's public meetings. If particular accommodations for the disabled are needed
(i.e., disability-related aids or other services), please contact the Executive Assistant at 582-3481 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.

Page 2 of 2

4 of 56



TAHOE
FOREST
éﬁé Hoseai— QUALITY COMMITTEE
DRAFT MINUTES

Tuesday, October 20, 2015 at 12:00 p.m.
Human Resources Conference Room, Tahoe Forest Hospital
10024 Pine Avenue, Truckee, CA

1. CALLTO ORDER
Meeting was called to order at 12:00 p.m.

2. ROLLCALL
Board: Greg Jellinek, M.D., Chair; John Mohun, Board Member

Staff: Janet Van Gelder, Director of Quality & Regulations; Judy Newland, CNO/COO; Sarah
Jackson, Executive Assistant; Trish Foley, Patient Advocate; Paige Thomason, Director of Marketing;
Catherine Hammond, Interim Director of Medical Staff Services; John Rust, Interim Director of
Emergency Services; Dr. Peter Taylor, Medical Director of Quality; Dr. Conyers;

3. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA
None.

4, INPUT — AUDIENCE
None.

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF: 8/20/2015
Recommendation made by Director Mohun to approve the Quality Committee minutes of August 20, 2015,
seconded by Director Jellinek.

6. ITEMS FOR COMMITTEE DISCUSSION AND/OR RECOMMENDATION
6.1. Quality Committee Goals 2015 & Charter
Informational for reference during the meeting if needed.

Director of Quality and Regulations provided a HFAP update. HFAP was acquired by AAAHQ and they will
completing all of our future surveys. Other than a change to the name, this acquisition will not affect us.

Goals were provided for reference. No discussion at this time.

6.2. Patient & Family Centered Care (PFCC)
6.2.1. Patient & Family Advisory Council Update
An update will be provided related to the activities of the Patient and Family Advisory Council (PFAC).

Patient Advocate distributed a draft format for the PFAC Process Improvement Log. Feedback is
welcomed.

PFAC Council now has 6 members, with the newest member beginning their participation at tonight’s

Page 1 of 3 5 of 56



QUALITY COMMITTEE — DRAFT MINUTES Continued
Tuesday, October 20, 2015

meeting.

Discussion was held regarding the Press-Ganey surveys, CMS requirements for the surveys, and patient
perception of the ease of use of the surveys.

CNO/COO requested (if possible) to have the PFAC review the TFHD website for ease of use and access
to information.

6.3. TFHS Website Quality Information Update
Committee reviewed Tahoe Forest Health System website quality information.

Director of Marketing introduced the webpage updates. The website updates were reviewed and
suggestions made. Universally, bar graphs were preferred to line graphs.

6.4. National Healthcare Quality Week
Healthcare Quality professionals at Tahoe Forest Health System joined those around the nation in
celebrating National Healthcare Quality Week, October 18-24, 2015. The week highlighted the
influence of healthcare quality professionals in achieving improved patient care outcomes and
healthcare delivery systems. Healthcare quality professionals ensured their facility meets specific
requirements set forth by accrediting bodies for healthcare organizations and programs, such as
Healthcare Facilities Accreditation Program (HFAP), Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS),
California Department of Public Health (CDPH) and Nevada Healthcare Quality & Compliance (HCQC).

Discussion was held regarding considering adding this information to our website. CEO/CIO and Director
of Marketing are continuing work on updating the TFHD website.

6.5. Lean Training Program
Committee was provided an update about the Lean training program that TFHD staff has been
participating in. This was funded through a grant from the National Rural Health Resource Center and
the CHA Flex Grant.

Lean training was conducted on Monday, September 28, 2015. Excellent feedback was received by the
Managers and Directors that received the training. Director of Quality and Regulations will work with
Hospital Administration on how to implement this system hospital wide. Small groups have been using
this program already, and the Lean culture will be encouraged and implemented system wide.

6.6. Beta Disclosure & Communication Program
Committee was provided an update on the lessons learned at this program including the Care for the
Caregiver program.

Drs. Conyers, Alpert, Taylor, and Van Gelder attended a Beta Disclosure and Communication seminar.
The major theme of the program is to be transparent with communication regarding error and/or harm
to patient disclosure. Communication coaches are encouraged on how best to effectively and
compassionately communicate with transparency. There were many scenarios to work through in the
training program. Care for the Caregiver services were discussed. TFHD meets the regulatory

Page 2 of 3

6 of 56



QUALITY COMMITTEE — DRAFT MINUTES Continued
Tuesday, October 20, 2015

requirements for having a disclosure policy and a care for the caregiver policy. Further exploration on
how these policies may best impact the patients and the care givers will be conducted.

6.7. BETA Zero Harm Program Recognition
BETA Healthcare Group is focused on improving reliability and reducing risk exposure. As Partners in
Patient Safety, BETA provides their members the opportunity for significant reductions in their
contributions. The Quest for Zero patient safety program offers a tiered approach to this award in
Obstetrics and the Emergency Department.

The Obstetrics Department received a Tier 2 rating which equals a 7% reduction in the department
premium. The Emergency Department received a Tier 1 rating which equals a 5% reduction in the
department premium. Representatives from TFHD will be attending the conference in November in
Coronado, CA to recognized staff and PFAC members.

6.8. Annual Board Policy Review
6.8.1. ABD-20 Patient Satisfaction
ABD-20 Patient Satisfaction policy was reviewed.

Procedure 1.0 was discussed to determine how it was implemented in actuality.

Director Mohun requested the Quality Committee bring information to the next Committee meeting
about ARC and ASTRO accreditations.

The policy will be reviewed independently and be brought back to the next Quality Meeting.

6.9. Board Quality Education
The committee will review and discuss topics for future Board quality education.

The Estes Park agenda for the coming year was reviewed for future education. Dr. Van Gelder noted
that there was nothing specific to Quality on the Estes Park agenda. Other groups were reviewed with
nothing specific relating to Quality. Dr. Van Gelder will continue to review education agendas for
Quality committee related topics and bring them forward to this committee for review.

7. REVIEW FOLLOW UP ITEMS / BOARD MEETING RECOMMENDATIONS
Mr. Mohun suggested that the monthly Governance Institute pamphlets be reviewed by the Quality
Committee. They frequently have material that relates to this committee.

8. NEXT MEETING DATE
The date and time of the next Quality Committee meeting was tentatively scheduled for December 16,
2015 from 12:00pm — 1:30pm in Eskridge Conference Room.

9. ADJOURN
Meeting was adjourned at 1:25 p.m.

Page 3 of 3

7 of 56



Quality Committee Charter

Tahoe Forest Hospital District is committed to performance excellence, to
delivering the highest quality care and service, and to exceeding the expectations
of our patients, physicians, employees, and community. This committee will
provide leadership, oversight, and accountability for organization wide quality
improvement processes and programs. We will regularly assess the needs of
our stakeholders, evaluate proposed quality initiatives, openly debate options,
and assure the production of an organization wide strategic plan for quality. We
will set expectations, facilitate education, and support the monitoring of the
quality of care, service excellence, risk reduction, safety enhancement,
performance improvement, and healthcare outcomes. Because of our efforts
Tahoe Forest Hospital District will be the best place to receive care, the best
place to work, the best place to practice medicine, and a recognized asset to all
in our community.

Approved January 22, 2014

8 of 56



Board Quality Committee Goals 2015

Provide appropriate resources to assist the Patient & Family Advisory Council (PFAC)
improvement initiatives.

Monitor quality and patient safety metrics and support processes, with a focus on
outliers, to achieve top decile performance.

Provide direction on the Quality and Service elements of the Health System strategic
plan and the Quality Assurance/Performance Improvement (QA/PI) Plan.

Share quality and service metrics with the community through multi-media venues (i.e.,
web site, public speaking, social media, quarterly magazine, newspaper articles, etc.).

Utilize Just Culture principles when notified of sentinel/adverse events, including the
disclosure of medical errors, and when patients share their experience.

Request that the Quality Department evaluate Patient Satisfaction survey vendors and
determine if a change in vendor is warranted.

Prepare for Critical Access Hospital’s participation in CMS Hospital Value-Based
Purchasing program through the monitoring of Clinical Process of Care, Patient
Experience, and Outcome measures.

9 of 56



PFAC PROCESS IMPROVEMENT LOG
The identified topics are noted on this log and the information is forwarded to the responsible
Director/Manager for their review and follow up.

Topic Forwarded Discussion/Status
to/Department

PFAC PI Log 1% Quarter 2015

PFAC 1% Meeting April 2015

PFAC PI Log 2" Quarter 2015

4/14/15 | Orientation N/A
5/19/15 | White Boards - Inpatient Jim, Kerry PFAC reviewed mock-up whiteboards. Discussed adding goals and
Interpreter Services Pete Stokich blank area for patient questions that could be written down by RNs
to discuss during Hospitalist rounding. PFAC suggestion to have ‘in
person’ interpreters again; discussed with Pete and this is not
feasible or cost effective; reminder to staff of language line and
iPads
6/23/15 | Inpatient Discharge Process Jim PFAC reviewed d/c process, discussed ways to facilitate process and
Service Excellence Report Trish/Jake/Alex, | avoid time delays. Suggestions to providing realistic time frame,
Human update patients when d/c orders signed, and note time on
RESOUrces whiteboards. Service Excellence Quarterly Report was reviewed

with PFAC. Discussion followed regarding patient perception of the
service provided by front desk staff. Jake to follow up with Alex
about Customer Service Training starting with MSC, Occupational
Health, and Cancer Center.

PFAC PI Log 3rd Quarter 2015

7/21/15 | No meeting scheduled

fDof 56



PFAC PROCESS IMPROVEMENT LOG

The identified topics are noted on this log and the information is forwarded to the responsible
Director/Manager for their review and follow up.

Topic Forwarded Discussion/Status
to/Department
8/18/15 | Preoperative Process Linda, Denise- PFAC provided feedback on Preoperative process including
ABN Subcommittee questions Ambulatory interaction with Pre-Admit RN, scheduling appt for lab work,
ED noise reduction suggestion Surgery, financial questions being answered prior to procedure, and avoiding
Stephanie-ABN repetition in di_scussing pati_ent_med_ hx. ABN feedback proyided in
John -ED regards to reminder of medication lists at appts and addressing 3™
party insurance coverage. PFAC member suggested
iPods/headphones in ED patient area; at this time ED focusing on
noise reduction curtain.
9/15/15 | ICD 10, Press Ganey Survey letter Tory, PFAC commented on information sheet that was going to be given
Grateful Patient Program Registration out on start date of ICD-10 that may have affected wait time.
Martha Simon, Information was condensed, ‘less is more’. Press Ganey Survey
Foundation letter reviewed; determined no change due to limits by vendor.
PFAC reviewed Grateful Patient Program and commented on
presentation of brochures; suggestion to provide in d/c packets from
inpatient units.
PFAC PI Log 4" Quarter 2015
10/20/15 | MyChart introduction page Jen Tirdel, MSC | PFAC reviewed the introduction page for the MyChart patient

Patient concern response letters

Trish Foley,
Quality

portal. Suggestions were made to keep page informative yet
not be intimidating with the login process, and clearly define
what the portal does and does not provide. Also, listing
providers by clinic/specialty for ease of contact information.
Patient response letters were also reviewed for language and
format to help provide a feeling that concerns are
acknowledged and addressed (in a sensitive manner) in
addition to providing the required elements of the grievance
process and contact information for CDPH.

fl of 56




PFAC PROCESS IMPROVEMENT LOG
The identified topics are noted on this log and the information is forwarded to the responsible
Director/Manager for their review and follow up.

Topic Forwarded Discussion/Status
to/Department
11/17/15 | TFHD Website Paige Thomason, | PFAC reviewed drafts for upcoming changes to TFHD
BETA Symposium Marketing website. Suggestions were made to include staff in review of

content in addition to Directors to foster pride and ownership
of information. Also, include a drop down button for
translation to Spanish. PFAC provided feedback on their
experience to date on the council for Karen (member) to share
at the BETA Symposium (11/20/15) during a presentation on
starting a PFAC. Positive feedback included follow through of
inpatient whiteboards and members feeling like their voice
makes a difference © Constructive advice to streamline PFAC
orientation process as it appears to be excessive in
requirements.

12/15/15 | Meeting cancelled/holiday month

f’z of 56



SAMPLE

u /V TAHOE

FOREST
HosPITAL
DISTRICT

AMBULATORY SURGERY SURVEY

We thank you in advance for completing this questionnaire. When you have finished, please mail it in the

enclosed envelope.

THE SERVICE YOU RECEIVED (iill in one circle only - for example ®)

Please select the last outpatient surgery or procedure you received. Rate only that service and visit.

O Ophthalmology (eye) O G.I. Procedures O Cosmetic Surgery
O Ear, Nose, Throat O Dermatology O General Surgery
O Orthopedics O Urology O Other:

O Gynecology O Dental/Oral (specify)

BACKGROUND QUESTIONS (write in answer or fill in circle as appropriate)

1. Date of procedure: 3. Patient'ssex............ O Male

/ /

month day year

2. Was this your first visit as a 4. Patient'sage ......cccocceeeeee

patient to our Ambulatory
Surgery Center?.................... OYes ONo

O Female

years

INSTRUCTIONS: Please rate the outpatient surgery you received from our facility.
Rate only the service you selected above. Fill in the circle that best describes your
experience. If a question does not apply to you, please skip to the next question.
Space is provided for you to comment on good or bad things that may have
happened to you.

Please use black or blue ink to
fill in the circle completely.

Example: @

very very
poor poor fair good good
A. REGISTRATION 1 5
1. If you spoke with the Surgery Center by phone, helpfulness
of the person you Spoke With .............cooiiiiiii e O O O O O
2. Ease of getting an appointment for surgery when you wanted...............ccccoeeeiiieenn. O O O 0O O
3. Information you received prior to surgery (i.e., time of surgery, how to prepare)......... O O O O O
4. Helpfulness of the person at the registration desk ... O O O O O
Comments (describe good or bad experience):
very very
poor poor fair good good
B. FACILITY 1 2 3 4 5
1. Comfort of the registration waiting area................ccoooeveieeeeceecee e O O O O O
2. Comfort of your room or resting area inthe Center...............ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiicee O O O O O
3. Comfort of the waiting area for your family .............cccooiiii i, O O O O O
4. Attractiveness of the Surgery Center ... O O O O O
5. Cleanliness of the Surgery Center ... O O O O O
Comments (describe good or bad experience):
continued...

1409678

SAMPLE

130f5-



SAMPLE
. very very

poor poor fair good good

C. BEFORE YOUR SURGERY OR PROCEDURE 1 2 3 4 5
1. Waiting time before your surgery or procedure began ..............ccccooiiiiiiiiieiieee. O O O O O
2. Friendliness/courtesy of the physician ...............coo oo O O O O O
3. Explanation the physician gave you about what the surgery or

procedure WOUId D lKE ........ooouiiieiee e O O O O O
4. Friendliness/courtesy Of the NUISES ..........oooiiiiiii i O O O O O
5. SKkill of the nurse starting V... O O O O O
6. Information nurses gave you on the day of your procedure ...........cccceevveeeiiiiececeeens O O O O O
7. Anesthesiologist's explanation .......... ... O O O O O

Comments (describe good or bad experience):

very very
D. AFTER YOUR SURGERY OR PROCEDURE fille
1. Nurses' concern for your comfort after the procedure...............cccccoooeieiiiiiceicee. O O O O O
2. Information the physician provided about what was done during
YOUT SUIGEIY OF PrOCEAUIE ... ..eiiiiee it e ettt e et e e e et e e e e e et e e e e e e aneeeee e e e snnneeeeeas O O O O O
3. Nurses' courtesy toward family who accompanied you (if applicable).......................... O O O O O
4. Information nurses gave your family after your surgery or procedure.......................... O O O O O
5. Instructions nurses gave about caring for yourself athome....................coooociiii O O O O O
6. Your confidence in the skill of the NUISes ... O O O O O
7. Your confidence in the skill of the physician .............ccoooii i O O O O O

Comments (describe good or bad experience):

very very
poor poor fair good good
E. PERSONAL ISSUES 1 2 3 4 &
1. Information provided about delays (if you experienced delays)........c..ccccceeveeveenennn. O O O O O
2. 0Ur conCern for YOUI PrIVACY .......ccuuiiiiiieeeaieee e e et ee et e e ettt e e e e s e e s e e e sneeeeanneeeas O O O O O
3. Degree to which your pain was controlled...............cc.ocooiiiioiiiiiieeeeee e O O O O O
4. Response to concerns/complaints made during your Visit ...........coccooeiiiiiiie e, O O O O O
Comments (describe good or bad experience):
very very
poor poor fair good good
F. OVERALL ASSESSMENT 1 2 3 4 5§
1. Overall rating of care received during your Visit.................ccccooeoeoioiceeeeeeeeeeeeee O O O O O
2. Degree to which staff worked together to care for you ...........coccoeiiiiiiiiiiiiiis O O O O O
3. Likelihood of your recommending our Ambulatory Surgery Center to others .............. O O O O O

Comments (describe good or bad experience):

Patient's Name: (optional)

Telephone Number: (optional)

© 2004 PRESS GANEY ASSOCIATES, INC.,
All Rights Reserved
CL#6805-AS0101-02-06/14 0
L7 PRESS GANEY"™
1409678

. EE:E 123456789 123456789-1
Precode 1

Precode 2

SAMPLE Precode 3




SAMPLE

INCLINE
VILLAGE
COMMUNITY
HosPITAL

EMERGENCY DEPARTMENT SURVEY

We thank you in advance for completing this questionnaire. When you have finished, please mail it in the
enclosed envelope.

BACKGROUND QUESTIONS [write in answer or fill in circle (for example ®) as appropriate]

1. Date of visit: 3. Time spent in the Emergency Department:
month day year hours minutes
4. Patient's sex............... O Male O Female

2. Time of day you arrived: (fill in one circle only)
O 7:01am-11:00 am

()]

Patient'sage............ccccceeen

O 11:01am- 3:00 pm ' years
O 3:01pm- 7:00 pm 6. Who is filling out this survey?
O 7:01 pm-11:00 pm O Patient O Friend
O 11:01 pm - 3:00 am O Parent O Other
O 3:01am- 7:00am O Family
INSTRUCTIONS: Please rate the Emergency Department services you received
from our facility. Fill in the circle that best describes your experience. If a question [Please use black or blue ink to
does not apply to you, please skip to the next question. Space is provided for you |fill in the circle completely.
to comment on good or bad things that may have happened to you. Example: @
very very
A. ARRIVAL m s
1. Waiting time before staff noticed your arrival ..............cccoiiii O O O O O
2. Helpfulness of the person who first asked you about your condition ............................ O O O O O
3. Comfort of the waiting @rea...........coooiiiii e O O O O O
4. Waiting time before you were brought to the treatmentarea...................ccccoos O O O O O
5. Waiting time in the treatment area, before you were seen by adoctor......................... O O O O O

Comments (describe good or bad experience):

very very
poor poor fair good good
B. NURSES i1 2 3 4 5
1. CoUreSsY Of thE NUISES.......coiiieice et O O O O O
2. Degree to which the nurses took the time to listento you ... O O O O O
3. Nurses' attention to YOUr NEEAS ............c.ocooviiiiiieieeeee e O O 0O O ©°
4. Nurses' concern to keep you informed about your treatment .................ccccooovviiiiinns O O O 0O O
5. NUrses' CONCEIN fOr YOUT PrIVACY..........c.coeieiee e, O O O O O
Comments (describe good or bad experience):
very very
poor poor fair good good
C. DOCTORS 1 2 3 4 5
1. Courtesy Of the dOCIOr..........oooiiiii e O O O O O
2. Degree to which the doctor took the time to listen to you..........ccccoooiiii O O O O O
3. Doctor's concern to keep you informed about your treatment ...............c..ccoooeiiii O O O O O
4. Doctor's concern for your comfort while treating you ...........ccccoooeiiiiiiiiii O O O O O
Comments (describe good or bad experience):
9312959 continued .

m .

SAMPLE




SAMPLE

. very _ very
D. TESTS p(;or p%or fa3|r gc:;)d gogd
(Please answer only those questions that apply to you.)
Lab
1. Courtesy of the person who took your blood ...............ccceiiiiiiiiii e O O O O O
2. Concern shown for your comfort when your blood was drawn...............c..ccoooeieiieen O O O O O
3. Extent to which nurses checked ID bracelets before giving you medications............... O O O O O

Radiology (X-ray, ultrasound, CAT scan, MRI)

1. Waiting time for radiology teSt ..........ooiiiiiii O O O O O
2. Courtesy of the radiology staff ..o O O O O O
3. Concern shown for your comfort during your test ............ccccoviiiiiiiiiiiie O O O O O
Comments (describe good or bad experience):
very very
poor poor fair good good
E. FAMILY OR FRIENDS 1 2 3
(If you came alone, please skip this section.)
1. Courtesy with which family or friends were treated ...............c.ccoooiiiiiiii O O O
2. Staff concern to keep family or friends informed about your status
during your course of treatment ..., O O O
3. Staff concern to let a family member or friend be with you while
YOU Were being treated. ... ..o O O O
Comments (describe good or bad experience):
very very
poor poor fair good good
F. PERSONAL/INSURANCE INFORMATION 1 2 3 4 5
1. Courtesy of the person who took your personal/insurance information........................ O O O O O
2. Privacy you felt when asked about your personal/insurance information...................... O O O O O
3. Ease of giving your personal/insurance information...............ccccccoviiiiiiiiiiic e O O O O O
Comments (describe good or bad experience):
very very
poor poor fair good good
G. PERSONAL ISSUES 1 B a4 4 &
1. How well you were kept informed about delays................cccooooiiiiiiiiii O O O O O
2. Degree to which staff cared about you as a person...........cccccoeeeeeiiiiiiiiicece e O O O O O
3. How well your pain was controlled.............ccccoiiiiiiiiiee e O O O O O
4. Information you were given about caring for yourself at home
(e.g., taking medications, getting follow-up medical care)......................c.cccooeeiienn O O O 0O O
Comments (describe good or bad experience):
very very
poor poor fair good good
H. OVERALL ASSESSMENT 1 5 3 4
1. Overall rating of care received during your Visit .............cccoiiiiiiiiie e O O O O O
2. Likelihood of your recommending our Emergency Department to others.................... O O O O O

Comments (describe good or bad experience):

Patient's Name: (optional)

Telephone Number: (optional)

© 2004 PRESS GANEY ASSOCIATES, INC.,

All Rights Reserved
CL#9192-ER0101-02-07/10
9312959 Y o " | | I‘
Precode 1

Precode 2

SAMPLE Precode 3




19621

SAMPLE

/v TAHOE =

FOREST
HOSPITAL
DISTRICT

EMERGENCY DEPARTMENT SURVEY

We thank you in advance for completing this questionnaire. When you have finished, please mail it in the
enclosed envelope.

BACKGROUND QUESTIONS |[write in answer or fill in circle (for example ®) as appropriate]

1. Date of visit: 3. Time spent in the Emergency Department:
month day year hours minutes
4. Patient's seX .............. O Male O Female

2. Time of day you arrived: (fill in one circle only)

© 7:012am-11:00 am 5. Patient's age........c.ccccoecveven....
O 11:01 am- 3:00 pm years
O 301 pm- 7:00 pm
O 7:01 pm-11:00 pm

6. Who is filling out this survey?

O 11:01 3:00 O Patient O Friend
lpme e am O Parent O Other
O 3:01am- 7:00am .
O Family

INSTRUCTIONS: Please rate the Emergency Department services you received

from our facility. Fill in the circle that best describes your experience. If a question |Please use black or blue ink to
does not apply to you, please skip to the next question. Space is provided for you |fill in the circle completely.
to comment on good or bad things that may have happened to you. Example: @
very very
A. ARRIVAL p?lor pozor fa:;r gc::d go;d
1. Waiting time before staff noticed your arrival ................cocoii O O O O O
2. Helpfulness of the person who first asked you about your condition ............................ o o O O O
3. Comfortof the waiting area............ccoooiiiii e O O O O O
4. Courtesy of the triage exam and interview ... o o O O O
5. Waiting time before you were registered ... O O O O O
6. Waiting time before you were brought to the treatmentarea...................ccooc o o O O O
7. Waiting time in the treatment area, before you were seen by a doctor........................ O O O O O

Comments (describe good or bad experience):

© 2004 PRESS GANEY ASSOCIATES, INC.,
All Rights Reserved
CL#6805-ER0101-01-11/06
123456789-1 v ®

continued ...
Precode 1
P;gggdg 3 123456789 17 of ;

Precode 3 SAMPLE




SAMPLE

very very very very .
poor poor fair good good poor poor fair good good
B. NURSES 1 2 3 4 5 F. PERSONAL/INSURANCE INFORMATION 1.2 3 4 5
1. Courtesy Of the NUISES. ... e, O O O O O 1. Courtesy of the person who took your personal/insurance information....................... o O O O O
2. Degree to which the nurses took the time to listento you.................... o O O O O 2. Privacy you felt when asked about your personal/insurance information .................... o o0 O O O
3. Nurses' attention 0 YOUr NEEAS ..........coooiiiiiiii e o O O O O 3. Ease of giving your personal/insurance information .....................ccccocooeeioeiceeeen. O O O O O
4. Nurses' concern to keep you informed about your treatment ... O O O O O ) _ _
5. Nurses' CONCErN fOr YOUT PIIVACY. ...........ccueiiiie e o O O O O Comments (describe good or bad experience):
6. How clearly discharge instructions were explained ..........................cccoiiiiiiiii o O O O O
7. Technical sKill Of NUISES ..........ccooiiiiii e o O O O O
Comments (describe good or bad experience): very very
poor poor fair good good
G. PERSONAL ISSUES 1 23 4 &
very very 1. How well you were kept informed aboutdelays................cocooiiiiiiiiiieee O O O O O
poor poor fair good good 2. Degree to which staff cared about youas aperson...............coccveeeeiiiieic e O O O O O
C. DOCTORS 234 8 3. How well your pain was controlled ... o O O O O
1. Courtesy OF TN O O . .o, O O O O O 4. |Information you were given about Caring for yourse|f at home
2. Degree to which the doctor took the time to listen to you...........ccccoooiiii O O O O O (e.g., taking medications, getting follow-up medical care)........................cccccoceiiii. O O O O O
3. Doctor's concern to keep you mformgd abou.t your treatment ... o O O O O Comments (describe good or bad experience)
4. Doctor's concern for your comfort while treating you ............ccoocoiiiiiiiiiii O O O O O
5. Adequacy of time doctor spent with YOU ...............ooooiiiiii e O O O O O
Comments (describe good or bad experience):
very very
poor poor fair good good
- = H. OVERALL ASSESSMENT 1 2 3 4 5
poor poor fair good good 1. Overall rating of care received during your VISt .............ccooiiiiiiiiiiie e O O O O O
D. TESTS 1.2 3 4 veral raing aurng y
- 2. Likelihood of your recommending our Emergency Department to others.................... o O O O O
(Please answer only those questions that apply to you.) 3. Overall satisfaction with the emergency department ..............c....ooooiiiiiiiii e o O O O O
Lab _ .
1. Courtesy of the person who took your blood ................ccooioiiiii e O O O O O Comments (describe good or bad experience):
2. Concern shown for your comfort when your blood was drawn...............cccccocoeeeiinenne, O O O O O
Radiology (X-ray, ultrasound, CAT scan, MRI)
1. Waiting time for radiology teSt ..o o O O O O
2. Courtesy of the radiology staff ... O O O O O
3. Concern shown for your comfort during your test ............ccccooviiiiiii i o O O O O Patient's Name: (optional)
Comments (describe good or bad experience): ]
Telephone Number: (optional)
very very
poor poor fair good good
E. FAMILY OR FRIENDS i 3 & s &
(If you came alone, please skip this section.)
1. Courtesy with which family or friends were treated ....................ccoociiiiiiiii O O O O O
2. Staff concern to keep family or friends informed about your status
during your course of treatment ... o O O O O
3. Staff concern to let a family member or friend be with you while
you were being treated ... O O O O O

Comments (describe good or bad experience):

19621

123456789

SAMPLE



very very
poor poor fair good good

PERSONAL ISSUES 2 3 5
1. Staff concern for YoUr PriVaCy .........c.ooi oo O O O O O
2. How well your pain was controlled ................ooomiii oo O O O O O
3. Degree to which hospital staff addressed your emotional needs................cccevennnn.. O O O O O
4. Response to concerns/complaints made during your stay...........ccccceeeiiieeeieeeccieeeee O O O O O
5. Staff effort to include you in decisions about your treatment ... O O O O O

Comments (describe good or bad experience):

very very

OVERALL ASSESSMENT poor poor fair good good
1. How well staff worked together to care for you..........cccooiii i O O O O O
2. Likelihood of your recommending this hospital to others ..................cccooiii. O O O O O
3. Overall rating of care given at hospital................coocoeoeeieeiceieeceeeee e O O O O O

Comments (describe good or bad experience):

Patient's Name: Telephone Number:

(optional) (optional)
THANK YOU. Please return the completed survey in the postage-paid envelope.

123456789

SAMPLE

Questions 1-22 and 'About You' questions are part of the HCAHPS Survey and are works of the U.S. Government. These HCAHPS questions
are in the public domain and therefore are NOT subject to U.S. copyright laws. The three Care Transitions Measure® questions (Questions 23-25)
are copyright of The Care Transitions Program® (www.caretransitions.org).

© 2004 PRESS GANEY ASSOCIATES, INC.,
All Rights Reserved

e PRESS GANEY"
||| | I‘ CL#6805-120101-03-07/14

Return To: 710 Rush Street, South Bend, IN 46601
123456789-1
Precode 1
Precode 2
Precode 3

SAMPLE

/v TAHOE

FOREST
HosSPITAL
DISTRICT

OMB Control Number: 0938-0981

SURVEY INSTRUCTIONS: You should only fill out this survey if you were the patient during the hospital stay
named in the cover letter. Do not fill out this survey if you were not the patient. Answer all the questions by
completely filling in the circle to the left of your answer. You are sometimes told to skip over some questions in
this survey. When this happens you will see an arrow with a note that tells you what question to answer next,

like this: O Yes
® No - If No, Go to Question 1

Please answer the questions in this survey about your stay at Tahoe Forest Hospital

Please use black or blue ink to
fill in the circle completely.

District. Do not include any other hospital stays in your answers. Example: @

YOUR CARE FROM NURSES

1. During this hospital stay, how often did nurses
treat you with courtesy and respect?
O Never
O Sometimes
O Usually
O Always

2. During this hospital stay, how often did nurses
listen carefully to you?
O Never
O Sometimes
O Usually
O Always

3. During this hospital stay, how often did nurses
explain things in a way you could understand?

O Never

O Sometimes
O Usually

O Always

4. During this hospital stay, after you pressed the call
button, how often did you get help as soon as you
wanted it?

O Never

O Sometimes

O Usually

O Always

O I never pressed the call button

YOUR CARE FROM DOCTORS

5. During this hospital stay, how often did doctors
treat you with courtesy and respect?

O Never

O Sometimes
O Usually

O Always

6. During this hospital stay, how often did doctors
listen carefully to you?

O Never

O Sometimes
O Usually

O Always

7. During this hospital stay, how often did doctors
explain things in a way you could understand?
O Never
O Sometimes
O Usually
O Always

THE HOSPITAL ENVIRONMENT

8. During this hospital stay, how often were your room
and bathroom kept clean?

O Never

O Sometimes
O Usually

O Always

9. During this hospital stay, how often was the area
around your room quiet at night?
O Never
O Sometimes
O Usually
O Always

YOUR EXPERIENCES IN THIS HOSPITAL

10. During this hospital stay, did you need help from
nurses or other hospital staff in getting to the
bathroom or in using a bedpan?

O Yes
O No - If No, Go to Question 12

11. How often did you get help in getting to the bathroom

or in using a bedpan as soon as you wanted?

O Never

O Sometimes
O Usually

O Always

12. During this hospital stay, did you need medicine for
pain?

O Yes
O No - If No, Go to Question 15

continued...

190f;

6528752




13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

During this hospital stay, how often was your
pain well controlled?

O Never

O Sometimes
O Usually

O Always

During this hospital stay, how often did the hospital
staff do everything they could to help you with your
pain?

O Never

O Sometimes

O Usually

O Always

During this hospital stay, were you given any
medicine that you had not taken before?

O Yes
O No - If No, Go to Question 18

Before giving you any new medicine, how often did
hospital staff tell you what the medicine was for?

O Never

O Sometimes
O Usually

O Always

Before giving you any new medicine, how often did
hospital staff describe possible side effects in a
way you could understand?

O Never

O Sometimes

O Usually

O Always

WHEN YOU LEFT THE HOSPITAL

18.

19.

20.

After you left the hospital, did you go directly to your
own home, to someone else's home, or to another
health facility?

O Own home

O Someone else's home

O Another health facility - If Another, Go to
Question 21

During this hospital stay, did doctors, nurses or
other hospital staff talk with you about whether
you would have the help you needed when you
left the hospital?

O Yes
O No

During this hospital stay, did you get information
in writing about what symptoms or health problems
to look out for after you left the hospital?

O Yes
O No

OVERALL RATING OF HOSPITAL

Please answer the following questions about your stay
at the hospital named on the cover letter. Do not include
any other hospital stays in your answers.

21. Using any number from 0 to 10, where 0 is the
worst hospital possible and 10 is the best hospital
possible, what number would you use to rate this
hospital during your stay?

O 0 Worst hospital possible
O1
02
O3
o4
O5
O6
o7
(OX:]
09
O 10 Best hospital possible

22. Would you recommend this hospital to your
friends and family?

O Déefinitely no
O Probably no
O Probably yes
O Definitely yes

UNDERSTANDING YOUR CARE WHEN YOU LEFT
THE HOSPITAL

23. During this hospital stay, staff took my preferences
and those of my family or caregiver into account in
deciding what my health care needs would be
when | left.

O Strongly disagree
O Disagree

O Agree

O Strongly agree

SAMPLE

ABOUT YOU

26.

27.

28.

20.

During this hospital stay, were you admitted to
this hospital through the Emergency Room?
O Yes

O No

In general, how would you rate your overall health?

O Excellent
O Very good
O Good

O Fair

O Poor

In general, how would you rate your overall mental
or emotional health?

O Excellent

O Very good

O Good

O Fair

O Poor

What is the highest grade or level of school
that you have completed?

O 8th grade or less

O Some high school, but did not graduate
O High school graduate or GED

O Some college or 2-year degree

O 4-year college graduate

O More than 4-year college degree

30. Are you of Spanish, Hispanic or Latino origin
or descent?

O No, not Spanish/Hispanic/Latino

O Yes, Puerto Rican

O Yes, Mexican, Mexican American, Chicano
O Yes, Cuban

O Yes, other Spanish/Hispanic/Latino

31. Whatis your race? Please choose one or more.
O White
O Black or African American
O Asian
O Native Hawaiian or other Pacific Islander
O American Indian or Alaska Native

32. What language do you mainly speak at home?

O English

O Spanish

O Chinese

O Russian

O Vietnamese

O Portuguese

O Some other language (please print):

24.

25.

When | left the hospital, | had a good understanding
of the things | was responsible for in managing my
health.

O Strongly disagree

O Disagree

O Agree

O Strongly agree

When | left the hospital, | clearly understood the
purpose for taking each of my medications.
O Strongly disagree
O Disagree
O Agree
O Strongly agree
O I was not given any medication
when | left the hospital

123456789

ADDITIONAL QUESTIONS ABOUT YOUR STAY

Now that we have asked you to tell us about what happened during your stay, we want to ask you about
how well we met your needs.

INSTRUCTIONS: Fill in the circle that best describes your experience. If a question does not apply to
you, please skip to the next question. Space is provided for you to comment on your experiences.

very very
poor poor fair good good
ADMISSION 1 2 3 4 5
1. Speed Of adMISSION PrOCESS. ... .cuiiuiiuieiieieierieeieeee ettt ee et e eee e ese e enee e saeneeneas O O O O O
2. Courtesy of the person who admitted you ..o O O O O O
Comments (describe good or bad experience):
very very
ROOM poor poor fair good good
1. Pleasantness of r00M AECOT .........c..ooouiiueeeeeeee e O O O O O
2. ROOM ClEANINESS ... ..ottt e e e e eeee e eeee e enneeneaens O O O O O
3. Courtesy of the person who cleaned your roOM............c.coeoureueeueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e O O O O O
4. ROOM tEMPEIAtUIE ... een s O O O O O
5. Noise level in and around rOOM ...........c.ooiui e O O O O O

Comments (describe good or bad experience):

SAMPLE

very very
poor poor fair good good .
MEALS 1 2 3 4 5
1. Temperature of the food (cold foods cold, hot foods hot) ..............ccoeeieiieiieiee O O O O O
2. Quality of the fOOT ..o O O O O O
3. Courtesy of the person who served your food .............ccooiiieiiieiineee e O O O O O
Comments (describe good or bad experience):
very very
NURSES poor poor fair good good
1. Friendliness/courtesy Of the NUISES ..........cc.coueiueouiee e O O O O O
2. Promptness in responding to the call button .............c.cooooiiiiiiiiie e O O O O O
3. Nurses' attitude toward YoUr reQUESES ...........cocoeouieieeeieee e O O O O O
4. Amount of attention paid to your special or personal needs ............cccocceeeeeeieenennne. O O O O O
5. How well the nurses kept you informed .............ccooooiiiiiiiiiiii e O O O O O
B. SKill Of the NUISES ..o O O O O O
Comments (describe good or bad experience):
very very
TESTS AND TREATMENTS poor poor fair good good
1. Waiting time for tests or treatments ..................ocoooooiiiioceee e O O O O O
2. Explanations about what would happen during tests or treatments............................. O O O O O
3. Courtesy of the person who took your blood ..............coeeieeeiciciieeeeee e O O O O O
4. Courtesy of the person who started the V... 0O 0O 0O O O
Comments (describe good or bad experience):
very very
VISITORS AND FAMILY poor poor fair good good
1. Accommodations and comfort for VISItors ...............cccoooeoioecoe e O O O O O
2. Staff attitude toward Your VISItOrS .............ooveeiieeeee e O O O O O
Comments (describe good or bad experience):
very very
PHYSICIAN poor poor fair good good
1. Time physician spent With YOU ..........o.coiiiiiiii e O O O O O
2. Physician's concern for your questions and WOrTI€S...........c..coeeveevieoeeeeeieeeeeeeeene O O O O O
3. How well physician kept you informed ...............oooeiiiiiiieieeeeee e O O O O O
4. Friendliness/courtesy of PhYSICIAN ............ccvooiiiiieiee e O O O O O
5. SKill Of PRYSICIAN ..ot O O O O O
Comments (describe good or bad experience):
very very
DISCHARGE poor poor fair good good
1. Extent to which you felt ready to be discharged ...............ccooii i O O O O O
2. Speed of discharge process after you were told you could go home............c.............. O O O O O
3. Instructions given about how to care for yourself athome................ccocooiiiiiii O O O O O

Comments (describe good or bad experience):

6528752

contmued.‘20 of ;



SAMPLE

/VTAHOE FOREST
MULTISPECIALTY CLINICS

A Service of Tahoe Forest Health System

MEDICAL PRACTICE SURVEY

We thank you in advance for completing this questionnaire. When you have finished, please mail it in the
enclosed envelope.

Please rate your appointment with: Precode 3
On: Precode 4

BACKGROUND QUESTIONS
1. If someone other than the patient is 4. How many minutes did you wait in
completing this survey, please fill in circle: QO the exam room before you were

seen by a doctor, physician

2. Was this your first visit here?.... O Yes O No

3. How many minutes did you wait
after your scheduled appointment
time before you were called to
an exam room? ......ccccoeevecieeeeenn.

minutes

assistant (PA), nurse practitioner
(NP), or midwife?.........................

minutes

INSTRUCTIONS: Please rate the services you received from our practice. Select

the response that best describes your experience. If a question does not apply to
you, please skip to the next question. Space is provided for you to comment on

Please use black or blue ink to
fill in the circle completely.

good or bad things that may have happened to you. Example: @
very very
oor poor fair good good
ACCESS 5 5 3 4
1. Ease of getting through to the clinic on the phone................ccccocoooiiiiiiiii O O 0O O O
2. Convenience of our OffiCe NOUIS ............cooiiiiiiiiieieccee e O O O O O
3. Ease of scheduling your appointment ................coocoiiiiiioioiiieeeceeeee O O O O O
4. Courtesy of staff in the registration area...................ccocoocovviiiiiiiiii e O O O O O
5. Length of time between your call and seeing a care provider..................cccccoocvevennn.n. O O O O O
Comments (describe good or bad experience):
very very
oor poor fair good good
MOVING THROUGH YOUR VISIT N 3 g
1. Degree to which you were informed about any delays .................cccocooiiieiieicieeen O O O O O
2. Wait time at clinic (from arriving to 18aving) ..........c.ccooovivviiiiiieeeeee e O O O O O
3. Courtesy of front office staff...............ccoooiiiiiiiii e, O O O O O
Comments (describe good or bad experience):
very very
oor poor fair good good
NURSE/ASSISTANT Y 5 i
1. Friendliness/courtesy of the nurse/assistant................c.ccccooiiiiiiiiici O O O O O
2. Concern the nurse/assistant showed for your problem .................c.coocooiiiiiiiiii, O O O O O
Comments (describe good or bad experience):
2450217 continued...

SAMPLE

210f5-



SAMPLE
. very very

poor poor fair good good

CARE PROVIDER 1 95 a 4 ¢

DURING YOUR VISIT, YOUR CARE WAS PROVIDED PRIMARILY BY A
DOCTOR, PHYSICIAN ASSISTANT (PA), NURSE PRACTITIONER (NP), OR MIDWIFE.
PLEASE ANSWER THE FOLLOWING QUESTIONS WITH THAT HEALTH CARE PROVIDER IN MIND.

1. Friendliness/courtesy of the care provider.............ccocooiiiiiiiiiiic e, O O O O O
2. Explanations the care provider gave you about your problem or condition.................. O O O O O
3. Concern the care provider showed for your questions or worries ..............cccccoeeeeeenne. O O O O O
4. Care provider's efforts to include you in decisions about your treatment.................... O O O O O
5. Information the care provider gave you about medications (if any)............................. O O O O O
6. Instructions the care provider gave you about follow-up care (if any)........................ O O O O O
7. Degree to which care provider talked with you using words you could understand..... O O O O O
8. Amount of time the care provider spent With YOU................c.ccooviiiiiiiiiieeeee, O O O O O
9. Your confidence in this Care ProVider ..............ocoooe i O O O O O
10. Likelihood of your recommending this care provider to others ................cccccooeeen O O O O O
Comments (describe good or bad experience):
very very
poor poor fair good good
PERSONAL ISSUES 15 3 4
1. How well staff protected your safety (wearing gloves, etc.)..........ccccocoviiiiiiiiiiiins O O O O O
2. Our sensitivity t0 YOUr NEEAS ............coiiiiiiiiiiiic e O O O O O
3. OUr CONCEIN fOI YOUR PIIVACY .....coviiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt O O O O O
4. Cleanliness Of QUM PraCtiCe..........ccoiiiiiiiii it O O O O O
5. Waiting time before having testing done..............c.ccooioiiiiiiece e O O O O O
6. Ease of obtaining referrals for specialty care................ocoooiiiiiiii O O O O O
7. Ease of obtaining test reSUILS ..o, O O O O O
Comments (describe good or bad experience):
very very
oor poor fair good good
OVERALL ASSESSMENT 4 5 4 4 0
1. How well the staff worked together to care for you..............cccocoeiiiiiiiiiii O O O O O
2. Likelihood of your recommending our practice to others ...............ccccocociiiiiiiiiinn. O O 0O O O
3. Accuracy of billing statements..............c.cocooiiiiiie e O O O O O
4. Promptness with which questions or problems about your bill were resolved
(I YOU NAA @NY) ..ot O O O O O
5. Courtesy of insurance/billing personnel.............c.ocooiiiiiiiiei i, O O O O O
6. Degree to which your mailed bill was clear and understandable.................................. 0O O O O O

Comments (describe good or bad experience):

Patient's Name: (optional)

Telephone Number: (optional)

© 2004 PRESS GANEY ASSOCIATES, INC.,
All Rights Reserved
CL#6805-MD0101-01-09/10 v
®

2450217

. E:E: 123456789 123456789-1
Precode 1

Precode 2

SAMPLE Precode 3




SAMPLE

TAHOE
FOREST
HosPITAL
DISTRICT

H_-N\N

OUTPATIENT SERVICES SURVEY

We thank you in advance for completing this questionnaire. When you have finished, please mail it in the
enclosed envelope.

THE SERVICE YOU RECEIVED (fill in one circle only - for example ®) ‘

Please select the last outpatient test or treatment you received. Rate only that service and visit.

O Ultrasound O Nuclear Scan O Orthopedics
O Mammography O X-Ray O Lab
O CT Scan O MRI O Other:
(specify)

BACKGROUND QUESTIONS (write in answer or fill in circle as appropriate)

1. Date of visit: 6. How many minutes did you wait
in the test or treatment area before
/ / your test or treatment began?.........
minutes
month day year
2. gattientt_'s firét Vif’it to our v N 7. On what day was your most recent visit?
utpatient Center.................. OYes ONo O Monday O Thursday O Saturday
3. Patient's sex............... OMale O Female O Tuesday O Friday O Sunday
O Wednesday
4. Patientsage..........cccccceveiinn,
] _ years 8. At what time of day was your most recent visit?
5. H°Yt" rptany m'"“t:de'ldé'OU 06:00am-8:00am O 2:01 pm-4:00 pm
wait after your schedule . . . .
appointment time before you O 8:01 am - 10:00 am O 4:01 pm - 6:00 pm
were called to the test or O 10:01 am - Noon O 6:01 pm -8:00 pm
treatmentarea?......................... O 12:01 pm - 2:00 pm O 8:01 pm - 10:00 pm

minutes

INSTRUCTIONS: Please rate the outpatient service you received from our facility.
Rate only the service you selected above. Fill in the circle that best describes your
experience. If a question does not apply to you, please skip to the next question. Please use black or blue ink to
Space is provided for you to comment on good or bad things that may have fillin the circle completely.
happened to you. Example: @

very very
poor poor fair good good

A. REGISTRATION

1. Helpfulness of the person at the registration desk ... O O O O O
2. Ease of the registration ProCeSS ..........ccoiiiiiiiiiiii e O O O O O
3. Waiting time in registration..............ccoiiii e O O O O O

Comments (describe good or bad experience):
continued... 58415

. 123456789
SAMPLE

= .



SAMPLE

. very very
poor poor fair good good
B. FACILITY 1 3 4 5
1. Comfortof the waiting area ... O O O O O
2. Ease of finding your way aroUnd..............oooiuiiiiiiieiiie e O O O O O
3. Cleanliness of the facility.............coooiiiiiiiiii e o O O O O
Comments (describe good or bad experience):
very very
poor poor fair good good
C. YOUR TEST OR TREATMENT 2 32 4 B
1. Friendliness/courtesy of the staff who provided your test or treatment........................ O O O O O
2. Explanations from the staff about what would happen during your test or treatment.. © O O O O
3. Skill of the staff who provided your test or treatment..............ccooiiiii O O O O O
4. Staff's concern for your Comfort ... O O O O O
5. Staff's concern for your questions and WOITIES ............cccouiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e O O O O O
Comments (describe good or bad experience):
very very
poor poor fair good good
D. PERSONAL ISSUES 2 3 4 5
1. OUr CONCEIN fOr YOUT PIIVACY ......viieiiiiieeiiie ettt ettt o O O O O
2. Our sensitivity 10 YOUr NEEAS ...ttt O O O O O
3. Response to concerns/complaints made during your visit ..................ccccccoeiiin O O O O O
Comments (describe good or bad experience):
very very
poor poor fair good good
E. OVERALL ASSESSMENT 1 72 3 4 &
1. How well staff worked together to provide care .............c..ccoooeiiiiiiiiiiiic e O O O O O
2. Overall rating of care received during your Visit................cccoiiiiiiiiiii o O O O O
3. Likelihood of your recommending our facility to others ................c....ccooiiiiiiii O O O O O

Comments (describe good or bad

experience):

Patient's Name: (optional)

Telephone Number: (optional)

123456789-1
Precode 1
Precode 2
Precode 3

MRENOINE.

SAMPLE

© 2004 PRESS GANEY ASSOCIATES, INC.,
All Rights Reserved
CL#6805-OU0101-01-04/07

123456789

58415

e 0N



Disclosure of Error or
Unanticipated Outcome to
Patients/AFamilies




Policy Purpose

O

- address the process of disclosure of unexpected
outcomes to patients/families.

- ensure a standardized mechanism for identifying,
reporting, investigating, trending, and resolving
unexpected outcomes.

- provide meaningful information regarding the
status of their condition and care, including, but
not limited to, unanticipated outcomes of
treatment.




Disclosure Support

O

- Contact the House Supervisor and ask them to
contact Disclosure support staft

- Hospital Staff (24/7) include:

- Carl Blumberg (817-846-9445), Janet Van Gelder (530-412-
4036), Trish Foley

- Determine which physician would be best suited to participate
in the disclosure

- Medical Staff include:
- Peter Taylor, Julie Conyers, Ricki Alpert, Shawni Coll




Disclosure

O

- should occur as soon as is practical after being
recognized, no later than 24 hours, and when the
patient is ready physically and psychologically to
receive the information.

- always include at least two staff members,
including Medical Staff or hospital staff.

- limited to a factual explanation of the
circumstances, and an explanation of the impact of
the unanticipated outcome and/or error on the
patient’s treatment, the prognosis, and steps taken
to mitigate the harm.




Disclosure (cont.)

O

 share that a review will take place to learn as much
as possible about the unanticipated outcome and/or
error in order to prevent similar unintended
outcomes in the future

« information regarding resources available to support
and comfort the patient and/or family, including,
offering Patient Advocate or Social Services
assistance

« an apology as appropriate for the circumstances

o follow up meetings will occur to update them on our
findings and answer their questions




Tahoe Forest Health System

éﬁé Title: Patient Satisfaction Policy/Procedure #: ABD-20
’ Responsible Department: Board of Directors
Type of policy Original Date: Reviewed Dates: Revision Dates:
X | Board 8/96 2/11; 1/12; 1/14 5/06; 2/14; 11/15

[ | Medical Staff é&

[J | bepartmental

Applies to: [X] System [] Tahoe Forest Hospital [] Incline Village Community Hospital

PURPOSE:

Tahoe Forest Health System espital-Bistrict's (TFHS) is committed to providing patient and

family- centered care services. The Patient Satisfaction Survey System provides feedback on

how we are meeting the needs of our patients, our objective is to exceed expectations and, in
an effort to attain this collective goal, we shall measure our success, monitor opinions, and
make improvements as necessary.

POLICY:

1.0 As an integral component of our Patient Satisfaction/Service Excellence program, the
organization shall provide patients, residents, and/or clients/customers an opportunity to
share their experiences, express how well the organization has met their expectations
and convey the level of satisfaction with the care/service provided.

2.0 Patients, residents, and/or clients/customers have the right to freely voice their opinions
and/or recommendations without being subject to coercion, discrimination, reprisal, or
unreasonable interruption of care, treatment, and service.

3.0 Perceptions of care/service, from patients, residents, and/or client/customers, may be
received through various methods and via multiple communication mechanisms which
may include, but are not limited, to the following:

3.1 Patient Satisfaction or Hospital Consumer Assessment of Healthcare Providers and
Systems (HCAHPS)Patient-Expectation-survey (internal and/or external process)

a a) dlo
Pato a e a aL—aRerer-gua a Pa O

3:33.2 Quality-CareFhyersService Excellence notices requesting patient/family
comments and feedback about their care are avatable-forthe-publicposted
throughout the Health System and-adjacentto-Service-Excellence-contact

343.3 Complaint Reports and Event Reports in the Event Reporting system completed
by TEHD staff or medical staff, concerning patient, resident, and/or
client/customer dissatisfaction.

3:53.4 Written communication to include receipt via mail, email, fax, hand delivery,
and/or addendum to a survey response

ABD-20 Patient Satisfaction
Page 1 of 3

30 of 56



4.0

3-63.5 Telephonic and/or verbal communication received by TFHD personnel and/or
medical staff

Information obtained through the Patient Satisfaction/ Service Excellence program,
Cemplaint-complaint reporting, and Event-event reporting, to promote service
excellence, patient_and family-centered guality-ef-care, and patient safety, shall be
aggregated and analyzed and will be utilized to:

4.1 Understand the needs of patients, residents, and/or client/customers;

4.2 Respond in a timely, flexible, and appropriate manner while incorporating the
Baldrige National Quality Program philosophy;

4.3 Address, in an effective and sustainable way, opportunities for improvement
practices through the Risk Management, Quality Assurance, Performance
Improvement, and/or the Patient Safety programs;

4.4 Build relationships to acquire, satisfy, and retain patients and other customers, to
increase loyalty, and to develop new healthcare service opportunities; and

4.5 Reinforce an ethos of quality by demonstrating to our patients, residents, and/or
clients/customers that Tahoe Forest Hospital District fosters positive relationships
and holds itself accountable as an agent of change and improvement.

PROCEDURE:

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

Administration, accountable to the Board of Directors, shall be responsible to develop a
culture that supports quality improvement and patient_and family-centered care through
the encouragement of feedback, suggestions, and recommendations from those who
access care, treatment, services and visit our facilities.

Leadership (administration, medical staff leadership, and/or the Board of Directors) may

choose to participate in a Patient Satisfaction or Hospital Consumer Assessment of Healthcare

Providers and Systems (HCAHP S)Patient-Expectation-survey process coordinated by state,

federal, or other external organizations.

Specific patient populations shall be contacted to elicit information related to the care,

treatment, and/or service rendered at Tahoe Forest Hospital District.

3.1 Leadership shall designate the specific patient populations that will be eligible to
participate in a Patient Satisfaction er-Patient-Expectation-survey process.

3.2 Leadership shall designate whether the entire population or a representative
sample shall be contacted to participate in the Patient Satisfaction erPatient
Expeetation-survey process.

3.3 The Patient Satisfaction erPatient-Expectation-survey information may be
requested via a verbal, telephonic, electronic, and/or written survey format.

Administration, persennethospital staff, Medical Staff, and/or volunteers may receive

information related to sharing of an experience, expressing how well the organization

has met an expectation, perception of care/service, and/or revealing the level of
satisfaction.

4.1 Organization-wide information collection processes include the following:

4.1.1 Patient Satisfaction erPatienrt-Expectation-survey/questionnaire process;

4.1.44.1.3 Written communication to include receipt via mail, email, fax, hand
delivery, and/or addendum to a survey response; and

41.54.1.4 Telephonic and/or verbal communication
4.2 Service/unit/department-specific information collection

ABD-20 Patient Satisfaction
Page 2 of 3

31 of 56



5.0 Organization-wide information shall be routed directly to the Quality and Regulations

Department.

5.1 Information shall be collected and aggregated

5.2 Data shall be analyzed to identify any trends and/or patterns

5.3 Data analysis and metrics shall be reported on a quarterly basis to appropriate
operational and medical staff committees

5.4 Trends and/or patterns shall be incorporated into the Performance Improvement
(PI) prioritization process to identify organization-wide Pl initiatives.

55 The Board of Directors shall receive a quarterly report by the Director of Quality

& Requlationsvia-minutes-of- the-medical- staffcommittees.

6.0 Service/unit/department-specific Patient Satisfaction erPRatient-Expectation
survey/questionnaire information.

6.1
6.2
6.3

6.4

6.5

Information shall be collected and aggregated;

Data shall be analyzed to identify any trends and/or patterns;

Data shall be incorporated into the Service/unit/department-specific performance
improvement focus;

Data analysis and metrics shall be reported on a quarterly basis to appropriate
operational and medical staff committees;

The Board of Directors shall receive a quarterly report_by the Director of Quality
& Requlations via-minutes-of-the-medical-staff committees:

7.0 Patient Satisfaction process confidentiality

7.1

7.2

The Quality and Regulations Department, in an effort to maintain confidentiality,
will be responsible for securely maintaining all correspondence, reports,
recommendations, and notes made or taken pursuant to this policy.

Furthermore, persennelstaff, department-headsDirector/Managers, and Medical
Staff committees ardlforpanels-charged with making reports, findings,
recommendations or investigations pursuant to this policy shall be considered to
be acting on behalf of the Tahoe Forest Hospital District Medical Staff and Board
of Directors and shall be deemed to be 'professional review bodies' as that term
is defined by the Healthcare Quality Improvement Act of 1986.

Related Policies/Forms: Patient and Customer Service Recovery Policy AGOV-23;

Patient/Family Complaints/Grievances AGOV-24; Quality Assurance/Performance Improvemen

t

AQPI-05; Event Reporting AQPI-06

References: Center for Medlcare and Medlcald Serwces (CMS) 29952015 Condltlons of

Participation, §482-

QFgam-zaﬂens—ZG%—HeaIthcare FaC|I|t|es Accredltatlon Program (HFAP) 2014

Policy Owner: Michelle-Ceok-Clerk of the Board

Approved by: Rebert-Schapper-Chief Executive Officer

ABD-20 Patient Satisfaction
Page 3 0of 3

{ Field Code Changed

( Field Code Changed

[ Field Code Changed

32 of 56


file:///C:/Users/jv08076/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/1RC4N0H6/PatientandCustomerServiceRecoveryPolicy.doc
file:///C:/Users/jv08076/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/1RC4N0H6/PatientFamilyComplaintsGrievance.docx
file:///C:/Users/jv08076/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/1RC4N0H6/Quality%20Assurance_Performance%20Improvement%20QA_PI%20Plan.docx
file:///C:/Users/jv08076/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/1RC4N0H6/Quality%20Assurance_Performance%20Improvement%20QA_PI%20Plan.docx

GOVERNANCE

Effectiveness of the
Board'’s Quality

Committee: wsrieer I NATONAL RESFARCH
Leading Practices and Lessons Learned

Maximizing the -

A Governance Institute White Paper Fall 2015

33 of 56




About the Author

Larry Stepnick is Vice President and Director of The Severyn Group, Inc., a Virginia-based
firm: that specializes in conducting qualitative and quantitative research, and writing and
producing publications on a wide range of healthcare management issues. In addition to
printed materials, The Severyn Group creates Web site content and electronic presenta-
tions for training and education purposes. Severyn’s clients include a broad spectrum
of organizations that represent virtnally all aspects of healthcare, including financing,
management, delivery, and performance measurement. The Severyn Group assists clients
in resolving their most critical strategic concerns.

Prior to cofounding The Severyn Group in 1994, Mr. Stepnick served as senior vice
president and an elected officer of The Advisory Board Company, a for-profit member-
ship of more than 1,000 hospitals and health systems. Mr. Stepnick received his bachelor’s
degree from Duke University, where he graduated summa eum laude. He also holds an
M.B.A. from the Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania, where he graduated
with honors.

Mr, Stepnick can be reached at (703) 723-0951 or via email at larry@severyngroup.com.

Acknowledgements

The Governance Institute would like to thank the following individuals for participating
in the research related to this white paper. Their contributions, both in terms of time and
expertise, were invaluable to its creation.

C. Michael Armstrong
Chair, Patient Safety and Quality Board Committee, Johns Hopkins Medicine

John R. Ball, M.D,
Board Vice Chair and Quality Committee Chair, Mission Health

Michael Kulisz, D.O.
Chief Medical Officer. KishHealth System:

Erie D. Lister, M.D.
Managing Director, Ki Associates and Governance Institute Advisor

Peter Pronovost, M.D.
Senior Vice President of Quality and Safety, Johns Hopkins Medicine

James L. Reinertsen, M.D.
Chief Executive Officer, The Reinertsen Group

Leonetta Rizzi
Board Member and Chair, Quality and Credentialing Committee, KishHealth System

Wryatt 8. Stevens
Board Chair, Mission Health

The Governance Institute

The Governance Institute provides trusted, independent information
and resources to board members, healthcare executives, and physician
leaders in support of their efforts to lead and govern their organizations.

The Governance Institute is a membership organization serving not-for-profit hospital
and health system boards of directors, executives, and physician leadership. Membership
services are provided through research and publications, conferences, and advisory ser-
vices. In addition to its membership services, The Governance Institute conducts research
studies, tracks healihcare industry trends, and showcases governance practices ofleading
healthcare boards across the country.

Governancelnstitute.com « Call Toll Free {877) 712-8778 Maximizing the Effectiveness of the Board's Quality Committeg i

4 of 56



THE
GOVERNANCE
INSTITUTE

A service of\N NATIONAL RESEARCH
Carporation

The Governance Institute*
The essential resource for governance knowledge and solutions’

9685 Via Excelencia = Suite 100 » San Diego, CA 92126
Toll Free (877} 712-8778 » Fax (858) 909-0813

Governancelnstitute.com

|

e

Jona Raasch  Chief Executive Officer
Zuachary Griffin General Manager
Cynthia Ballow  Vice President, Operations
Kathryn C, Peisert  Managing Editor
Glenn Kramer  Creative Director
Kayla Wagner  Editor

Allya Garza  Assistant Editor

&L

4

field of healthcare governance since 1986, The Governance Institute provides educa-

tion and information services to hospital and health system boards of directors across
the country. For more information about our services, please call toll free at {877) 712-8778, or
visit our Web site at Governancelnstitute.com.

T he Governance Institute is a service of National Research Corporation. Leading in the

The Governance Institute endeavors to ensure the accuracy of the information it provides to
its members. This publication contains data obtained from multiple sources, and The Gover-
nance Institute cannot guarantee the accuracy of the information or its analysis in all cases.
The Governance Institute is not involved in representation of clinical, legal, accounting, or
other professional services. Its publications should not be construed as professional advice
based on any specific set of facts or circumstances. Ideas or opinions expressed remain the
responsibility of the named author(s). In regards to matters that involve clinical practice and
direct patient treatment, members are advised to consult with their medical stafis and senior
management, or other appropriate professionals, prior to implementing any changes based
on this publication. The Governance Institute is not responsible for any claims or losses that
may arise from any errors or omissions in our publications whether caused by The Gover-
nance Institute or its sources.

© 2015 The Governance Institute. All rights reserved. Reproduction of this publication in
whole or part is expressly forbidden without prior written consent.

it Maximizing the Effectiveness of the Boards Quality Commiltee Calk Toll Free (877) 712-8778 + Govermancelnstitute.com

5 of 56



Table of Contents

1 Executive Summary

3 Introduction: The Case for Board Quality Commitiees
3 Maximizing the Effectiveness of the Board Quality Committee:
Leading Practices and Lessons Learned

5 Quality Committee Key Insights, Strategies, and Practices

5 Commitiee Chaxter and Scope of Responsibility

7 Strategies and Practices Related to Committee Size and Composition
10 Strategies and Practices Related to Meeting Frequency, Agenda, and Other Logistical Issues

13 Case Studies
13 Johns Hopkins Medicine
15 Mission Health
16 KishHealth System

Governancelnstitute.com « Call Toll Free (877) 712-8778 Maximizing the Effectiveness of the Board’s Quality Committee i

36 of 56



iv Maximizing the Effectiveness of the Board's Quality Committee Call Toll Free (877) 712-8778 » Govemancelnsﬁtuteéom

7 of 56



Executive Summary

ased on areview of the literature and interviews with experts
and hospitalleaders {board members, administrators, and
clinical leaders), this white paper identifies strategies and

practices that differentiate the typical (often ineffective} board
quality commtittee from those that truly make a difference.

IT IS INTENDED TO INFORM BOARDS AS THEY SET GUIDELINES
related to the composition, standards, and functions of the board
quality committee, along with specifications for how the com-
mittee should interface with the full board, senior and clinical
management, and other board committees, such as the finance
committee,

Strategies and Practices Related to

Commitiee Charter and Scope

The full board will generally establish a formal “charter” for the
board quality committee that lays out its key areas of responsi-
bility, establishing clear distinctions between its role and that of
the full board and senior management. Key lessons and related
strategies include the following:

Lesson 1: Focus on Governance, Not Operations

The cominittee should clearly function as a board committee,
and not be confused with efforts led by physicians, staff, or senior
executives to improve quality. Typically these initiatives should
be made accountable to the board-level quality committee.

Lesson 2: Create the Same Accountability for Quality/

Safety as the Finance Committee Has for Budget

In the same way that the board's finance committee approves

budgets brought forward by managemntent, the board quality com-

mittee approves and takes ownership over management’s “work
plan” for quality and safety, setting quality-related goals and
monitoring management’s progress toward achieving them.

Practices and strategies that can help in these areas include the

following:

« Develop aggressive, broad, and easily understood organiza-
tional goals related to quality and safety for approval by the
full board.

- Work with key stakeholders to identify and approve specific
quality and safety priorities each year.

+ Identify measures and set targets within each priority.

+ Hold senior management and clinical leaders accountable
for performance, using national benchmarks and monitor-
ing under-performance until issues are resolved. In larger
systems, consider using “cascading” levels of accountability,
with issues coming to the board quality committee only when
efforts at lower levels of the organization to address the prob-
lem have not been effective.

Governancelnstitute.com « Call Toll Free (877) 712-8778

+ Periodically recommend new policies or policy revisions for
adoption by the full board.

Lesson 3: Oversee Integrity and Reliability

of the Credentialing Process

The board and its quality committee generally do not get divectly

involved in credentialing decisions, as this is the responsibility of

medical executive committees and other stakeholders within the

hospital. However, the quality committee should oversee creden-

tialing and peer review processes, thus reducing the burden on

the full hospital board, More specifically, the board quality com-

mittee should consider adopting the following sirategies related

to credentialing:

» Conduct an annual “andit” of the credentialing process.

» Revise credentialing criteria to reflect physician use of best
Practices and protocols for safety and guality.

Lesson 4: Send Clear Signals About Desired

Culture of Openness and Transparency

Through its varicus actions and activities, the board quality com-

mittee should send a clear, unmistakable signal to all key stake-

holders that the organization is committed to openness, candor,

and transparency when it comes to both quality and safety. Spe-

cific actions the board guality committee can take to promote

such a culture include the following:

» Recommend that the full board adopt a “just-culture” philoso-
phy.

« Adopt a “patients-as-only-customer” mantra.

» Develop and publicize a strong “disclosure-and-apology” plan,

Strategies and Practices Related to

Committee Size and Composition

The board quality committee cannot effectively execute its

charter or perform its key areas of responsibility unless it has

the “right” people in place. Effective committees must be of

a manageable size, have the right stakeholders at the table,

and have individuals with the requisite skills and expertise to

perform committee tasks effectively. Key practices include the

following;

« Make sure board members comprise the majority or near ma-
jority.

« Be cognizant of the size of the committee and the number of
voling members.

Maxirnizing the Effectiveness of the Board’s Quality Comrnitzeé 1

8 of 56



- Screen members carefuily, putting the most qualified board
members on the committee.

» Ensure representation from ail key stakeholders, including se-
nior administrators, senior clinicians, and community/patient
representatives. In particular, having two patient and family
members serve as voting members changes the nature of the
discussions that take place.

« Find the right committee chair (typically a lay board member).

+ Invest in training on quality and quality improvement, such as
annual retreats, formal training programs, educational com-
ponents during committee meetings, and time spent observ-
ing the front lines of care and sitting in on staff-led quality and
safety meetings.

Strategies and Practices Related

to Meeting Frequency, Agenda,

and Other Logistical Issues

The board quality committee needs to structure its work in a
manner that allows members to effectively perform its duties
and responsibilities. Doing so reguires the holding of regular
meetings, with an agenda structured in a way that promotes
meaningful, open dialogue about quality and safety problems

2 Maximizing the Effectiveness of the Board's Quality Committee

among all key stakeholders, with no fear of retribution or punish-

ment. Key strategies and practices include the following:

« Meet at least as often as the full board.

+ Consider creation of a subcommittee (in larger systems).

+ Incorporate additional special meetings as necessary,

+ Consider use of a standard agenda and reporting format.

+ Limit {or even) ban the use of presentations.

+ Start meetings with one or two patient stories.

+ Allot significant time to reviewing progress toward quality/
safety aims.

«+ Briefly review regulatory issues,

+ Focus on problems, not successes.

» Elicit everyone’s input.

+ Do not let the conversation get too clinical or technical in na-
ture.

» Encourage provocative questions.

- Highlight key areas discussed by the committee at full board
meetings.

+ Make sure quality and safety get adequate discussion time at
full board meetings.

» Have the quality committee chair present the committee re-
port to the full board.

» Have the quality committee chair meet periodically with his/
her peer on the finance committee.

Call Toll Free (877) 712-8778 » Governancelnstituteg)m

9 of 56



Introduction: The Case for Board Quality Committees

STUDIES SHOW THAT HOSPITALS THAT PERFORM WELL ON
various quality metrics tend fo have strong committed boards
with well-informed, skilled board members whe make guality a
priority, set clear and measurable goals for improvement, and
demand action when the organization fails to meet these goals
and/or experiences adverse events."* The Affordable Care Act
(ACA), moreover, requires hospital boards to take an active role
in ensuring that both quality and efficiency are improved.®

One common strategy many hospital beards use to pro-
mote the provision of high-quality care is to create a separate,
standing committee of the board charged with responsibility
for oversight over quality and patient safety. These quality com-
mittees receive and act on reports from the medical staff and
management on their respective activities related to quality,
oversight, credentialing, peer review, and corrective action.*

1 R. Millar, R. Mannion, T. Freeman, and H.T.O. Davies, “Hospital Board
Oversight of Quality and Patient Safety: A Narrative Review and
Synthesis of Recent Empirical Research,” Mifbank Quarterly, Vol. 91,
No. 4 {2013); pp. 738~770.

2 T.C. Tsai, AK Jha, and A.A. Gawande, et al., “Hospital Board And
Management Practices Are Strongly Related To Hospital Performance
On Clinical Quality Metrics,” Health Affairs, Vol. 34, No. 8 (August
2015); pp. 13041311,

3 R. Millar, et al., 2013,

4 R.L. Nagele, “Strategic Quality Oversight by the Hospital/Health
System Board of Directors,” BeardRoom Press, October 2014, The
Governance Institute.

Governancelnstitufe.com « Call Toll Free (877) 712-8778

he board has day-to-day responsibility under federal and
state law for reviewing and acting on medical staffactivities
related to quality, safety, and peer review.

In zo10, 88 percent of community hospital boards had such com-
mittees in place, up from 51 percent in 2003.> A more recent
survey of the 14 largest health systems in the country found that
all but one had set up a standing board committee to oversee
quality and patient safety; the one “holdout™ was in the process
of selting up such a committee at the time of the survey.®

This strategy, moreover, appears to have paid off. Hospitals
where the board has set up a separate quality committee are
muore likely to achieve strong performance on quality measures
than those without such a committee.” Better performance may
be due in part to the fact that boards with separate quality com-
mittees tend to spend more time on quality improvement (QI)
activities.®

Maximizing the Effectiveness of the

Board Quality Committee: Leading

Practices and Lessons Learned

Simply having a board quality committee, however, is no guar-
antee that it will work. In fact, some committees appear to make
a significant difference in boosting performance while others
seem to have little or no impact at all. What, then, determines
whether the board quality committee will be effective? The
answer is relatively simple. It is the “nuts and bolts” of opera-
tions (i.e., how the committee is structured and how it operates
and spends its time), In too many circumstances, boards form a
quality committee, only to cede control to management and the
medical staff. Board members serving on the committee become
frustrated because they do not feel their voices are being heard.
In many cases, these committees do not talk about the most
important issues facing the organization.? By contrast, in some
hospitals and health systems, the board quality committee does
serve as a highly effective body that drives continuous improve-
mend in quality and safety throughout the organization.

5 L.D. Prybil, R, Peterson, and B Brezinsld, et al. “Board Oversight of
Patient Care Quality in Community Health Systems,” American Journal
of Medical Quality, Vol. 25, No. 1 {2010); pp. 34-41.

6 L.D. Prybil, D.R. Bardach, and D.W. Fardo, “Board Oversight of Patient
Care Quality in Large Nonprofit Health Systems,” American fournal of
Medical Quality, Vol. 29, No. 1 (2014); pp. 39-43,

7 R.Millar, et al., 2013

8 L.D. Prybil, “Size, Composition, and Culture of High-Performing
Hospital Boards,” American Journal of Medical Quality, Vol. 214 (2006);
pp. 224-229,

9 Interview with James L. Reinertsen, M.D., The Reinertsen Group,
conducted on July 27, 2015,

Maximizing the Effectiveness of the Board’s Quality Committee

20 of 56



“In the best instances, the board

quality committee becomes the ‘power’
committee...in these cases, instead of the
finance comimittee, the board’s ‘heavy hitters’
want to serve on the quality committee”

—James L. Reinertsen, M.D., CEO, The Reinertsen Group

This white paper identifies strategies and practices that differen-
tiate the typical {often ineffective) board quality committee from
those that truly make a difference. It is intended to inform hoards
as they set guidelines related to the composition, standards, and

4 Maximizing the Effectiveness of the Board's Quality Committee

functions of the board quality committee, along with specifica-
tions for how the committee should interface with the full board,
senior and clinical management, and other board committees,
such as the finance committee.'® Based on a review of the lit-
erature and interviews with experts and hospital leaders (board
members, administrators, and clinical leaders), it is arganized
into two parts. The first section reviews key insights and lessons
related to various aspects of committee operations, including its
charter and scope of responsibility, committee size and composi-
tion, and meeting frequency, agendas, and other logistical issues
related to committee operations. The second section includes
three brief case studies of hospital and health system boards that
have set up particularly effective quality committees.

10 R.L. Nagele, 2014,

Call Toll Free (877) 712-8778 Governance]nstitutezom

1 of 56



Quality Committee Key Insights, Strategies, and Practices

Committee Charter and Scope

of Responsibility

The full board will generaily establish a formal “charter” for the
board quality committee that lays out its key areas of responsi-
bility, establishing clear distinctions between ifs role and that of
the full board and senior management. Key lessons and related
strategies include the following:

Lesson 1: Focus on Governance, Not Operations
Effective board quality committees focus on governance,
not operations.” The committee should clearly function as a
board committee, and not be confused with efforts led by phy-
sicians, staff, or senior executives to improve guality. Typically
these initiatives should be made accountable to the board-level
quality committee.

Lesson 2: Create the Same Accountability for Quality/
Safety as the Finance Committee Has for Budget

In the same way that the board’s finance committee approves
budgets brought forward by management, the board quality com-
mittee approves and takes ownership over management’s “work
plan” for quality and safety, setting quality-related goals and
monitoring management’s progress toward achieving them. In
addition, the board quality committee must stay abreast of any
areas where the organization may not be in compliance with
local, state, and/or federal regulatory requirements related to
quality and safety.

At Johns Hopking Medicine (JHM), board leaders created the
JHM Patient Safety and Quality Board Committee, giving it two
charges—first, that it function with the same rigor and discipline
as the board’s andit/finance committee, and second, that it have
oversight over the quality and safety of patient care delivered to
every JHM patient, regardless of where it is delivered within the
system.' Living up to this level of accountability requires the
development of high-level organizational goals, specific quality
and safety priorities related to those goals, specific measures and
performance targets within each of those priorities, and ongoing
monitoring to ensure that performance meets or exceeds the
established targets. Practices and strategies that can help in
these areas are detailed below.

Develop aggressive, broad, easily understood organiza-
tional goals related to quality and safety for approval by full
board: In partnership with the full board, the board quality com-
mittee often takes a lead role in setting broad, aggressive, and
easily understood organizational goals related to quality and
safety. Several years ago, the JHM Patient Safety and Quality

11 D. Seymour, “Invigorating the Board Quest for Quality Improvement.”
BoardRoom Press, February 2015, The Governance Institate,

12 Interview with Peter Pronovost, MLD,, Senior Vice President of Quality
and Safety, and Michael Armstrong, Chair of the Patient Safety and
Quality Board Committee, Johns Hopkins Medicine, July 10, 2015,

Governancelnstitute.comn « Call Toll Free (877) 712-8778

Board Committee reviewed its original charter, which laid out
the goal that JHM hospitals strive to be “above average” in terms
of quality and safety. Committee members decided that “above
average” was not good enough, and that the real geal should be
to becorme a “national leader” in these areas. The commitiee
identified two clear goals, First to partner with patients, their
loved ones, and others to end preventable harm, to continuously
improve patient outcomes and experience, and to eliminate
waste in healthcare. Second, to be national leaders in externally
reported measures. The full JHM board later endorsed this goal.

Werk with key stakeholders to identify and approve spe-
cific quality and safety priorities cach year: Consistent with
the broad goals described above, the quality committee works in
partnership with administrative and clinical leaders to establish
recommended priorities for QI each year. Finance leaders should
help in determining priorities based on patient volume and costs,
thus ensuring that addressing these areas will have a major impact
on both quality and financial performance. Ideally, the measures
tracked should go well beyond those used by the Centers for Medi-
care & Medicaid Services (CMS), which affect only a minority of
patients. Rather. measures should target the 10 to 20 highest-
vaolume conditions, and/or those that account for the majority of
patient complications and readmissions, and hence affect both
quality and costs.'> These priorities are then vetted and approved
by the full board and the full administrative and clinical leadership
team, often at the board’s annual retreat."*

Identify measures and set targets within each priority:
Once approved, the priorities become part of the strategic plan,
with teams given accountability for driving improvement in
each area by reaching measurable goals and targets.”” In most
cases, the board quality committee, senior management, and
clinical leaders work together to identify the measures to be
used and the specific performance targets for each measure,
with the full board then approving these measures and targets.
In a survey of the 14 largest non-profit health systems, the full
board had responsibility for approving system-wide measures
and standards in 11 cases, while in the other instances the board’s
standing committee on quality took on this role.’® Key consid-
erations related to measures and targets include the following;
« Do not forget stakeholder satisfaction measures: The

most effective board quality committees track not only clini-

cal outcomes, but also three additional datasets that serve as
leading indicators of quality—employee, provider, and cus-
tomer satisfaction.'”

13 J. Byrnes, “Using the Board Quality Committee to Drive the Value
Proposition.” &ifin, August 2014, Healthcare Financial Management
Association. Available at www.hfima.org/Content.aspx/id=23866,

14 ibid.

15 Ibid.

16 L.D. Prybil, et al,, 2014.

17 R.F Stacey, “Three Dutasets Should Drive Governing Boards;
BoardRoom Press, December 2014, The Governance Institute.

Maximizing the Effectiveness of the Board’s Quality Committee

22 of 56



+ Consider the shift to value and population health: When
approving the organizational quality plan, the board’s
quality committee should make sure that the plan reflects the
shift to accountable care. In other words, the plan should in-
clude initiatives, goals, and metrics that cut across the entire
continuum of care (not just the inpatient setting), including
physician groups, outpatient clinics, home care, rehabilitative
services, and long-term care. Similarly, the quality dashboard
should reflect measures of population health and chronic dis-
ease management, such as readmissions, emergency depart-
ment (ED) visits, blood pressure control among hypertensive
individnals, blood glucose control among those with diabetes,
patient-reported health status, and medication adherence.'®

Hold senior management and clinical leaders aceountable
for performance: The qualify subcommittee should review a
quality dashboard at every meeting. The dashboard should be
published on a monthly basis and made available electronically
at least a week before the meeting.’® The board quality com-
mittee should require the leaders of the teams tasked with
driving improvement to provide updates to the committee sev-
eral times a year, thus creating accountability and motivation
and providing a fornm to discuss progress, offer assistance to
teams that are struggling, and celebrate successes with teams
that have reached their target. Not requiring teams to deliver
such reports—or discontinuing the practice—can significantly
undermine progress.*® The following items are also critical in
this regard:

+ Use national benchmarks: Wherever possible, performance
should be compared to nationally reported benchmarks based
on standard definitions and data-collection methodologies.”
Boards that review and track their organization’s performance
versus national benchmarks tend to have better outcomes
with respect to quality than those that do not.?* In addition to
national benchmarks, it is essential to monitor quality perfor-
mance against the organization's own historical performance
and progress on goals.

+ Consider cascading levels of accountability: In larger
systemns, consideration should be given to creating cascad-
ing levels of accountability, with issnes coming to the board
quality committee only when efforts at lower levels of the
organization to address the problem have not been effec-
tive. For example, while the JHM Patient Safety and Quality
Board Committee reviews performance of all entities quar-
terly, the committee commissions an audit of performance
by the Armstrong Institute if that entity fails to bring perfor-
mance into line for three consecutive reporting periods, and
the full JTHM board becomes involved only after four reporting

18 B, Seyinour, 2015.

19 D.M. Murphy, “The Board's Role in Quality and Patient Safety
Performance Measurement,” BoardRoom Press, June 2014 (special
section), The Governance Institute.

20 J. Byrnes, 2014.

21 D.M. Murphy, 2014,

22 R. Millar, et al., 2013.

6 Maximizing the Effectiveness of the Board'’s Quality Commitiee

periods. This approach mirrors that used by the JHM board’s
finance committee. It is an explicit accountability model that
brings in additional oversight the longer an entity fails to meet
its goals.

+ Monitor under-performance issues until resolved: Under-
performance issues brought to the board quality committee
shonld remain on the agenda until the problem has been re-
solved and/or performance has rebounded to target levels. To
ensure that this occurs, unresolved issues from one meeting
should automatically be placed on the agenda for the next one.

Recommend new policies or policy revisions for adoption
by full board: Effective board quality committees will regularly
discuss potential new policies and policy revisions that relate to
quality and safety and, as appropriate, recommend their adop-
tion by the full board.

“Most hospital and health system boards have
great accountability for budgets and financial
issues, but not for quality and safety. Most boards
delegate this responsibility to medical staff
leadership, with little accountability for meeting
established performance goals. Boards need
to address this by using the same discipline in
meeting quality and safety objectives as they
do with budgets. Board members need not be
experts in quality of care, but rather need to be
experts in leadership, setting goals, ensuring
an infrastructure to meet the goals, requiring
plans, and transparently ensuring goals are
met, just as they do in their own businesses.”

—Dr. Peter Pronovost, Senior Vice President of Quality and

Safety, and C. Michael Armstrong, Chair of the Patieni Safety
and Quality Board Committee, Johns Hopkins Medicine

Lesson 3: Oversee Integrity and Reliability

of the Credentialing Process

The board and its quality committee generally do not get directly
involved in credentialing decisions, as this is the responsibility
of medical executive committees and other stakeholders within
the hospital. However, the quality committee should oversee cre-
dentialing and peer review processes, thus reducing the burden
on the full hospital board. Too often hospital boards approve the
granting of privileges to a large group of physicians as part of the
consent agenda, with virtually no discussion. Yet, in some cases,
little or no due diligence has been performed by the board to
make sure that these physicians consistently follow the quality
and safety protocols established by the organization. If a sentinel
event accurs due to the negligence of one of these physicians, the
negative repercussions for the organization and the board can be

Call Toll Free (877) 712-8778 » Governauce!nsﬁtute.z)m

3 of 56



significant. To avoid this problem, the board quality committee

should consider adopting the following strategies:

+ Conduct an annual “andit” of the credentialing process:
Much as the board finanice committee conducts a regular audit
of the budget, the board quality committee can conduct an an-
nual formal review of the credentialing process. Structured as
a separate meeting, this audit brings the credentialing team in
to discuss how the credentialing process works, particularly
with respect to making sure that physicians follow established
quality and safety protocols. This discussion should include a
review of how the process identifies and deals with physicians
who do not follow such protocols. The purpose of the andit is
to reassure the board—through the quality committee—that
the hospital has a strong process in place for ensuring that
physicians follow the requisite protocols,??

+ Revise credentialing criteria to reflect best practices and
protoceols: With the movement to value-based payments, hos-
pital board quality committees should consider revising the
approach Lo overseeing the granting of privileges and peer re-
view processes to include utilization of proven best practices
and clinical protocols. While physicians must be allowed to
exercise clinical judgment and make decisions outside the
bounds of the protocols, the board quality commitiee should
set a standard with respect to expectations. Norton Health-
care in Louisville, KY, for example, has adopted a policy set-
ting the expectation that physicians will adhere to proven best
practices and protocols as a requirement to practice on the
medical staff. Some specialties have designated national best
practices while other specialties have developed their own,**

Lesson 4: Send Clear Signals About Desired
Culture of Openness and Transparency
Through its various actions and activities, the board quality com-
mittee should send a clear, unmistakable signal to all key stake-
holders that the organization is committed to openness, candor,
and transparency when it comes to both quality and safety. In
organizations where the culture still encourages “cover-ups” and
“denialy;” the board quality committee can serve as the catalyst
for shifting to a culiure of open transparency. ** The culture must
be such that senior managers and physician leaders feel comfort-
able revealing mistakes and pretocol violations without fear of
punishment or shame. Specific actions the board quality com-
mittee can take to promote such a culture include the following;
« Recommend board adoption of “just culture”: Board
quality committees should recommend that the full board
adopt a "just-culture” approach to dealing with safety and
quality issues. This approach recognizes that bad things hap-
pen and that most of them are due to problems with systems
rather than individual behaviors. It further pledges that no
individual will be held accountable for such systems problems

23 Interview with James L. Reinertsen, M.D., The Reinertsen Group,
conducted on July 27, 2015.

24 D. Seymour, 2015.

25 Interview with James L. Reinertsen, M.D.,, July 27, 2015,

GovernanceInstitute.com « Call Toll Free (877) 712-8778

but rather will be recognized positively for speaking up openly
about these problems. Individuals are still held accountable
for negligent and reckless behaviors.

- Adopt “patients-as-only-customer” mantra: Too often
board quality committees are unwilling to adopt potentially
controversial actions that are necessary to improve gual-
ity and safety, typically because a key stakeholder {e.g. a
prominent physician) objects, in some cases threatening to
go work at another hospital if the action is taken. To coun-
ter such threats, board quality committees should consider
recommending adoption of a formal mantra that highlights
patients (not physicians) as the hospital’s only customer. At
Park Nicollet Health Services in Minneapolis, for example, the
board quality committee placed the words “the patient is the
only customer” at the top of the agenda for every committee
meeting.26

+ Develop and publicize a strong “disclosure-and-apology™
plan: The goal should be for the board quality committee and
the full board to know about any bad event before reading
about it in the newspaper. 7

Strategies and Practices Related to

Committee Size and Composition

The board quality committee cannot effectively execute its
charter or perform its key areas of responsibility unless it has
the “right” people in place. Effective committees must be of
a manageable size, have the right stakeholders at the table,
and have individuals with the requisite skills and expertise to
perform committee tasks effectively. Key practices are described
in the paragraphs below.

Make sure board members comprise majority or near
majority: The board quality committee must function as a com-
mittee of the board, not of management or the medical staff.
To ensure this clarity, experts suggest that board members
generally comprise a majority of all committee members, or at
least a “near” majority. In larger organizations, board members
may be a minority of all members, but should make up a majority
of voting members.*®

Be cognizant of size and number of voting members: As
with any committee, the board quality committee needs to be
large enough to ensure that members collectively have the right
background, expertise, and skills to perform effectively, but not
so large as to diminish the ability to have the right kinds of con-
versations and make the (sometimes controversial) decisions
that need to be made. As with the full board, the ideal size for
the board quality committee is between eight and 12 members,
and typically no more than 15. Very large systems may have more
members, although in these instances limits may be placed on
the number of voting members. At JHM, for example, the board

26 Ibid.

27 Ibid.

28 Interview with Eric D. Lister, M.DD,, Managing Director, Ki Associates,
conducted on July 6, 2015; interview with James L. Reinertsen, M.D,,
July 27, 2015,

Maximizing the Effectiveness of the Board's Quality Committee4 4?‘



quality committee includes five board members, the chairs of

each hospital’s board quality committee, the presidents of four

JHM affiliates, and the chair of the patient and family advisory

council. The presidents of each of the hospitals, and each entity

(ambutatory practices, home care, international, ambulatory pro-

cedure) staff the committee and present performance data.
Screen members carefully, put best board members

on committee: The board should appoint its best members to
the quality committee, which is considered to be a high-pro-
file assignment, at least as prestigious—if not more so—than
being appointed to the finance committee.®® Consequently,
the quality committee should receive the same priority as the
finance conumittee when screening for qualified members,
with interest in the position not being viewed as a substitute
for expertise and experience.’® Members must be willing to ask
hard questions and exercise serious accountability, If is helpful
if the committee’s membership remains stable over time to pre-
serve knowledge and experience built up over the years.™
Ensure representation from all key stakeholders: The
board quality committee should be a mixture of board mem-
bers, senior administrators, and clinical leaders, with the goal
of bringing the key stakeholders to the table to discuss and take
ownership over quality and safety across the organization.?

Some board quality cornmittees also include or otherwise get

input from community and/or patient representatives. Addi-

tional lessons related to each of these stakeholders include the
following:

+ Look for the right expertise among board members: Ide-
ally, board members serving on the quality committee should
collectively have expertise in QI methodologies (such as Lean
and Six Sigma), safety, statistical process analysis, patient ex-
perience, risk and legal issues, and finance (i.¢., someone who
can translate improvements into potential cost increases and/
or savings). Often board members from cutside the health-
care industry have this type of experience, including those
with backgrounds in banking, energy, manufacturing, hospi-
tality, retail, and education. At present, relatively few board
quality committees have this type of expertise among stand-
ing members,33

» Include senior administrators and clinicians: The board
quality committee should have a mix of clinical leaders and
senior administrators. In some cases, these non-board mem-
bers may not have voting rights when it comes to the commit-
tee making formal recommendations.3* A 2007 Governance
Institute survey found that hospitals who had members with
clinical expertise on the board guality committee performed
significantly better on process and outcomes measures than

29 J.L. Reinertsen, Hospital Boards and Clinical Quality: A Practical Guide,
Ontario Hospital Associatior, 2007,

30 D. Seymour, 2015,

31 R.L. Nagele, 2014,

32 Interview with Eric D. Lister, M.D., July 6, 2015.

33 J. Bymes, 2014.

34 Interview with Eric I, Lister, MDD, July 6, 2015,

8 Maximizing the Effectiveness of the Board’s Quality Committee

did hospitals with no such expertise on this committee.’® in
particular, the presence of physician and nurse leaders can
facilitate communication and build trust and confidence.3®
Along with the chief quality officer, CMO/VPMA, and CFO,
members might include leaders of hospital-owned or hospital-
affiliated group practices, and the chief of medical informatics
and/or quality measurement.*”

+ Consider including two or more community or patient
representatives: Former patients, family members of patients,
and/or representatives of the community at large can often
contribute effectively as members of the board quality com-
mittee. To do so, they must understand the role of the com-
mittee and have an adequate understanding of quality and QI
issues.3s]ames Reinertsen, M.D.,, CEQ of The Reinertsen Group,
strongly recommends that two patient and family members
serve as voting members of the board quality committee, as
their presence serves {o change the nature of the discussions
that take place. (Having one patient/family representative is
not adequate, as this individnal may feel isolated and hence
not participate in discussions.)?® Many hospitals have pa-
tient and family advisory councils in place, and members of
these councils often make for strong members of the board
quality committee, As an alternative to having patients and
family members as formal committee members, the commit-
tee can invite members of local community advisory boards
to sit in on meetings and/or ask them to provide their per-
spectives on particular issues being discussed. The committee
can also elicit input by pericdically hosting focus groups with
patients and community representatives.

“Having two patient and family representatives

as voting members of the committee is a ‘game
changer’ It's a vital structural element that few
board quality committees have in place today.
Having them in the room changes the nature of
the conversation, even if they do not speak. All the
normal excuses for poor quality and safety begin
to sound lame when the patient is in the room”

—James L. Reinertsen, M.D., CEO, The Reinertsen Group

Find the right chair (typically a lay board member): The
chair of the quality committee should be a board member who
has experience in leading continuous QI endeavors, Opinion is
divided on whether a physician should play this role. While some

35 HJ. Jiang, C. Lockee, K. Bass, and L. Fraser, “Board Oversight of
Quality: Any Dilferences in process of Care and Mortality?” Journal of
Healthcare Management. Vol, 54, No. 1 {2009); pp. 15-30.

36 R, Millar R, et al.,, 2013.

37 D Seyimonur, 2015

38 Interview with Eric D. Lister, M.D., July 6, 2015.

39 Interview with James L. Reinertsen, M.D,, July 27, 2015.

Call Toll Free (877) 712-8778 Guvernancelntitute.zogl



physicians may be able to able to play this role effectively, many
cannot. Consequently, in many cases, the most effective com-
mittee chairs will be lay board members from outside the health-
care industry who have the requisite experience and skills.***
Regardless of who serves as chair, he or she must be able {o elicit
input and guidance from all members of the committee and make
sure that discussions do not become too technical or clinical
in nature and/or too dominated by a few individuals. The chair
should also be someone who is passionate about quality and
safety and has time to lead the committee’s work. For example, at
Main Line Health System (a not-for-profit health system serving
portions of Philadelphia and its western suburbs), a national
expert on quality and QI serves as chair of its quality and patient
safety committee and also sits on the system board. **

Invest in training: Board members in general—and mem-
bers of the board quality committee in particular—need to be
proficient in the use and interpretation of safety and quality met-
rics,*3 Many boards, however, devote limited time and resources
to training and other activities designed to increase the “quality
literacy” of board members, which poses particular problems for
those board memnibers from outside the healthcare arena,* Mem-
bers need to remain up-to-date on the various domains of quality
and how they affect the organization's performance, including
its financial performance. To ensure that committee members

40 D. Seymour, 2015,

41 R.L. Nagele, 2014,

42 L. Stepnick, Making a Difference in the Boardroom: Updated Research
Findings on Best Practices to Prormote Quality at Tap Hospitals and Health
Systems, The Governance Institute, Fall 2014.

43 R. Millar, et al,, 2013.

44 Ibid,

GovernancelInstitute.com « Call Toll Free (877) 712-8778

have such knowledge and skills, the board guality committees

should consider investing in the following training for members:

+ Annual retreats and/or formal training programs; Com-
mittees should hold annual retreats and/or send members to
other appropriate training programs hosted by outside orga-
nizations.

» Educational component during meetings: Each commit-
tee meeting can also contain an education component, with
an emphasis on concrete examples of how high-quality, safe
care can have a positive impact on the organization’s finan-
cial performance.*> Committee members should also be pro-
vided with access to additional tools that can help ensure they
have adequate knowledge and expertise on specific issues
that come before the committee.*®

+ Time spent observing front lines of care: The chair and
members of the board quality committee should periodi-
cally spend time on the front lines of care within the hospital/
health system, learning about the business and applying their
insights and understanding to it.*7

- Visits to staff-led quality and safety meetings: Members of
the board quality committee (particularly the chair and vice
chair) should periodically sit in as an observer at meetings
where staff members discuss quality and safety issues, such
as the hospital-level quality oversight and credentialing com-
mittees. This experience will give them a better sense of the
quality- and safety-related issues being dealt with at the front
lines of the organization.

45 J. Byrnes, 2014.

46 R.L. Nagele, 2014

47 R.D. Parsons, M.A. Feigen, “The Boardroom’s Quiet Revolution,
Harvard Business Review, March 2014.

Maximizing the Effectiveness of the Board’s Quality Committee 9

6 of 56



_____________________________________________________]
Examples of Board Quality Committee
Training Programs

$pectrum Health, Grand Rapids, MI: All board members (not
just those on the quality committee} attend a two-day retreat
focused entirely on quality and safety. They also participate in
quality and safety teams where they present the perspective of
hoard member and patient. Special efforts are made to help
hoard members understand the potential of Q projects to reduce
costs. 48

Main Line Health System, Philadelphia, PA: Board members
on the quality and patient safety committee attend a “safety fair”
each year where they go through eight interactive learning sta-
tions with a team of clinicians. Every board member is expected
to attend a meeting of the quality and patient safety committee
at least once each year. The board chair proactively enforces
this requirement.49

KishHealth, DeKalb, IL: Committee members regularly partici-
pate in educational activities related to quality, at an intensity
levet greater than that provided to the full board. Representative
topics include briefings on the justculture concept, the Medi-
care Physician Quality Reporting System (PQRS), value-based
purchasing, preventable readmissions, and data collection and
reporting, The CMO and chief nursing officer (CNO) generaliy
present these topics, with other internal staff brought in as
needed. For example, the system’s risk manager led a session
an “just culture” while the director of quatity conducted a review
of PQRS.30

Strategies and Practices Related

to Meeting Frequency, Agenda,

and Other Logistical Issues

The board quality committee needs to structure its work in a
manner that allows members to effectively perform the duties
and responsibilities laid out earlier. Doing so requires the holding
of regular meetings, with an agenda structured in a way that pro-
motes meaningful, open dialogue about quality and safety prob-
lems among all key stakeholders, with no fear of retribution or
punishment. Key strategies and practices are described below.

Meeting Frequency

Leading strategies and practices related to how often the com-

mittee meets include the following:

- Meet at least as often as the full board: Board quality com-
mittees generally meet at least as often as the full board, and
sometimes more frequently, with meetings typically lasting

48 ). Fifer, “How to Increase Board Engagement in Quality and Finance,’
BoardRoon Press, The Governance Institute, February 2014,

49 L. Stepnick, 2014.

50 Interview with Michael Kulisz, M.D., Chief Medical Officer, and
Leonetta Rizzi, Chair of Quality and Credentialing Commitiee,
KishHealth System, August 7, 2015,

10 Maximizing the Effectiveness of the Boards Quality Commitiee

two to three hours.” Meetings often take place in advance of
the full board meeting, with highlights or issues from the com-
mittee meeting subsequently being discussed at the board
meeting,

Consider creating a subcommittee (in larger systems):
In larger systems, the board quality committee may find that
there is too much work for the committee to handle during
regular meetings. In these instances, consideration can be
given to creating a smaller subcommittee that does additional
work between committee meetings, For example, JHM's Pa-
tient Safety and Quality Board Committee meets four times a
year, with each meefing lasting roughly two and a half hours.
However, several years ago, the full committee created a per-
formance subcommittee made up of a subset of members who
also meet every quarter for two to three hours, Much like an
audit subcommittee of a board finance committee, this per-
formance subcommittee digs into the “weeds” of quality and
safety performance, analyzing issues and making recomn-
mendations to the full guality committee. Prior to creating
this subcommittee, the full Patient Safety and Quality Board
Committee met for four and a half hours each quarter, which
proved too long to ensure a productive session.™
Ircorporate additional special meetings as necessary: The
board quality committee should consider holding two special
meetings each year—one dedicated to oversight of the creden-
tialing process and a second focused on discussion and adop-
tion of 2 concrete set of quality and safety goals to be presented
to the full board for approval. These issues generally cannot be
handled during a regular meeting and hence, a separate time
block should be set aside for each every year.”

51 D.M. Murphy, 2014.
52 Interview with Peter Pronovost, M.D, and Michael Armstrong, Johns

Hopkins Medicine, July 10, 2015.

53 Interview with James L. Reinertsen, M.D,, July 27, 2015.

Call Toll Free (877} 712-8778 « Governancelnstitute.com



Meeting Agenda and Structure

The most effective board quality committees use various strate-

gies and practices related to the meeting agenda and structure

to maximize the effectiveness of meetings, as outlined below:

» Consider use of standard agenda, reporting format: Com-
mittee meetings often follow a standard format that calls for
discussion of each of the main quality and safety priority areas
for the organization. To facilitate understanding, committees
also can use standard reporting formats. For example, the JHM
Patient Safety and Quality Board Committee requires that a
standard format be used, known as MD&A (which stands for
management, discussion, and analysis}. Each report includes
both qualitative and quantitative information related to per-
formance, providing a vehicle to discuss opportunities to do
better, (More details on this template can be found in the case
study on Johns Hopkins Medicine in the next section.)**

+ Limit (or even) ban report presentations: The vast majority
of the meeting (80 percent or more) should consist of mean-
ingful dialogue, not presentations. As with the full board, com-
mittee members should receive and read all reports in advance
of the meeting, and those presenting should be reminded to
keep their prepared remarks quite brief. Committee chairs
might consider banning the use of prepared presentations for
these reasons,

« Start with one or two patient stories: To make the
discussion come alive and promote transparency, commit-
tee meetings can begin with a summary of one or two patient
stories that highlight safety issues to be discussed later in the
meeting. In most cases, a committee member will share the
story briefly (in one to two minutes), although occasionally a
patient or family member might be brought in to share a more
detailed first-person story illustrating a particular quality or
safety issue within the organization. In general, stories should
focus on problem areas, although on occasion a story can be
used to illustrate and celebrate successes.>

« Allot significant time to reviewing progress Loward gual-
ity/safety aims: The bulk of the meeting should focus on prog-
ress since the last meeting in achieving the aforementioned
quality and safety goals for the organization.

« Briefly review regulatory issues: Each meeting should in-
clude a brief review of any regulatory “slip-ups” related to
quality and safety. This “exception report” should review any
regulatory problems the organization faces at the moment and
how these issues are being dealt with by senior management.
In addition, the board quality committee should establish a
process for immediate (i.e., between meetings) notification
whenever a regulatory compliance issue related to quality and
safety arises; the notification should include a summary of the
plan for addressing the issue in question.

54 Interview with Peter Pronovost, M.D., and Michael Armstrong, Johns
1lopkins Medicine, july 10, 2015,
55 Interview with James L. Reinertsen, M.D,, July 27, 2015.

Governancelnstitute.com « Call Toll Free (877) 712-8778

]
A Good Quality Committee Meeting Agenda
(120 Minutes)

Dr. Reinertsen recommends the following 120-minute standard

meeting agenda for board quality committees:

1. Introductions, approval of minutes (5 minutes)

2. Patient story, illustrating data and/or issue to be reviewed
in the meeting (5 minutes)

3. Review of progress toward strategic quality aims (40 min-
utes)

4. Exception report for any regulatory compliance issues that
have arisen (20 minutes)

5. Review of new policies or other recommendations to the fuli
board (30 minutes)

6. Other agenda items (15 minutes)

7.  Meeting evaluation {5 minuies)

Promoting an Open, Transparent Dialogue

The most effective quality committees use various strategies

and practices to promote an open, transparent dialogue where

all committee members feel comfortable speaking openly and
honestly about the critical issues facing the organization:

« Focus on problems, not successes: While there is always
some room to acknowledge progress and strong performance,
the purpose of the board quality committee is to constantly
push the organization to do better. Consequently, the bulk
of discussion time during committee meetings and during
the quatity/safety part of full board meetings should focus
on problem areas and disturbing trends. To that end, patient
stories and progress reports should highlight areas of under-
performance, with the goal of stimulating meaningful conver-
sations about how to address these issues.’

» Elicit everyone’s input: The committee chair should make a
concerted effort to elicit input from everyone on the commit-
tee, and not let a few individuals dominate the conversation.
If necessary, the chair can go around the table to ask each
individual his or her opinion.

+ Do not let the conversation get too clinical or technical
in nature: The committee chair must not allow the conversa-
tion to become dominated by clinical or technical details, but
rather require that committee members “lift up” to focus on
important, big-picture issues,

« Encourage provocative questions: Committee members
should be encouraged to question the information and data
they see, play “devil's advocate,” and otherwise ask provocative
guestions intended to promote a meaningful dialogue. (The
sidebar below provides examples of questions to elicit open,
meaningful dialogne.)

56 Ibid,

Maximizing the Effectiveness of the Board’s Quality Committee 11

8 of 56



____________________________________________________________________________|
Questions te Encourage Open, Transparent
Dialogue about Quality and Safety

Dr. Reinertsen has developed the following set of guestions
hoard quality commitiee members can use to promaote an open,
transparent dialogue about quality and safety performance:

1. If | understand it correctly, this report displays the rate
of this safety event per 10,000 adjusted hospital days.
Could someone translate that into the number of patients
affected?

2. Can we dispense with the PowerPoint presentation and dis-
cuss some of the hard issues raised by the report in the
board packet?

3. Am | the only person who doesn't understand what you
just said?

4. Does every doctor on this list for re-appointment to staff
faithfully follow all of our safety protocols and procedures?

5. These goals seem tepid, Would they be stronger if they
weren't linked to the incentive compensation system?

6. Could someone remind me what our safety goal is? Is it to
be as good or better than other hospitals, or is it to elimi-
nate ali harm to patients?

7. What is our plan for sharing our safety performance data
widely with our staff, and with our community?

8. 1 see that hospital X is consistently at or very near the very
top performance ievel. Have we talked to its leaders to learn
what they do to achieve this level of performance?

9. The safety data that we see are largely counts of harm
events that have happened in the past. But isn't safety a
“dynamic non-event?” Don't we also need to know about
the reliability of our key safety processes?

10. How operationally aware and safe are we today?

11. How weli do we anticipate and prepare for safety risks in
the future?

12. How well are we learning the lessons from past safety
events?

12 Maximizing the Effectiveness of the Boards Quality Committee

Queality Committee Interaction with the Full

Board and Other Board Committees

As detailed below, the most effective quality committees estab-

lish formal practices and processes for their interactions with

the full board and with other board committees, such as the
finance committee:

» Highlight areas of discussion at full board meetings: The
chair of the quality committee should submit a summary re-
port to be presented at every full board meeting, The report
should summarize the organization’s performance on quality
and safety since the last meeting, highlighting aveas of achieve-
ment and underperformance, including issues that may over-
lap with strategic and financial priorities. Examples include
patterns of reportable events (not isolated events) and any
recommendations related to major capital investments in
quality and safety. In this latter instance, the quality committee
should make every effort ta present a quality and safety “RQI”
in terms of the impact of the investment in savinglives, avoid-
ing errors, and improving performance on quality metrics. If
possible, financial gains from these improvements should
be highlighted as well, such as the cost savings generated by
avoiding errors and/or the incremental revenue to be gained
on pay-for-performance contracts.””

+ Make sure quality and safety get adequate discussion time
at fult board meetings: The nstitute for Healthcare Improve-
ment recommends that boards spend at least a quarter of
meeting time on quality and safety issues.® Typically these
issues should be identified by the board quality committee.?
Survey data suggests that many large organizations meet this
standard. Among the nation’s 14 largest non-profit health sys-
tems, boards spend between 10 and 35 percent of meeting time
on quality and safety issues, with an average (median) of 23
percent.®®

+ Have the quality committee chair present the commit-
tee report to full board: The chair of the quality committee
should prepare the committee report and lead discussions
about quality and safety during the full board meeting. While
the CMO, CNO, and other committee members can parficipate
in the discussion, the committee chair should initiate and lead
the conversation.®*

« Have the chair meet with his/her peer on the finance com-
mittee: The chair of the board guality committee should meet
regularly with the chair of the board audit/finance committee
to discuss how each can support the other’s initiatives and fill
the other’s data needs. For example, both committees may be
seeking to measure quality and safety and/or to quantify the
financial benefits of QI activities.

57 TL.M. Murphy, 2014,

58 E. Zablocki, “[HI Calls on Boards to Lead on Quality and Safety: An
Interview with J. Conway,” Great Boards, Vol. 7, No. I, Summer 2007

59 D.M. Murphy, 2014.

60 L.D. Prybil, et al., 2014.

61 Interview with James L. Reinertsen, M.D,, July 27, 2015,

Call Toll Free (877) 712-8778 » Governancelnstitute.com



Case Studies

Johns Hopkins Medicine

Background

Headquartered in Baltimore, Johns Hopkins Medicine (JHM}is a $7
hillion integrated global health enterprise and one of the leading
healthcare systems in the U.S. Formalized by the trustees of the
university and the health system, JHM integrates the governance
of Johns Hopkins' medical enterprises, allowing them to respond
to changes in medical care delivery while remaining true to the
organization's mission of research, teaching, and patient care.
JHM operates six academic and community hospitals, four surgery
centers, and 3¢9 primary and specialty care outpatient sites. While
each hospital had a board quality committee since the late 1990s,
the integrated JHM Patient Safety and Quality Board Committee
came into existence in 201, shortly after forming the Armstrong
Institute for Patient Safety and Quality and creating a role of JHM
Senior Vice President for Patient Safety and Quality.

Charter and Scope of Board Quality Committee

The JHM Patient Safety and Quality Board Committee provides
oversight and ensures accountability for quality and patient
safety. Just as the [inance committee is accountable for every
dollar received and spent throughout JHM, the Patient Safety and
Quality Board Committee oversees the quality and safety of care
for every patient treated at all JHM entities.®

|
Dealing with Joint Commission Requirements

Because Joint Commission accreditation requirements mandate
that individual hospitals have their own board quality committees
responsible for quality oversight, each JHM hospital had to revise
its bylaws to make the JHM Patient Safety and Quality Board
Committee a subcommittee of that hospital’s board guality com-
mittee. In essence, each hospital board quality committee has
delegated oversight of quality to the system board guality com-
mittee. In reality, however, the oversight relationship is reverse,
with the hospital quality committees reporting to the JHM system
committee. Taking this step aflowed JHM to legally share data
and have open discussions throughout the system while still
protecting the confidentiality of the data.

62 PJ. Pronovest, C.G. Holzmueller, and N.E, Molello, €t al,, “The
Armstrong Institute: An Academic Institute for Patient Safety and
Quality Improvement, Research, Training, and Practice;’ Academic
Medicine, May 2015.

Governancelnstitute.com o Call Toll Free (877) 712-8778

Establishing Goals and Monitoring Performance

The JHM Patient Safety and Quality Board Committee sets stra-
tegic goals for the organization and moniters performance versus
these goals. The committee works in partnership with the Arm-
strong Institute for Patient Safety and Quality, which waslaunched
in 2on and is charged with coordinating research, training, and
operations for QI and patient safety efforts throughout JHM. The
Armstrong Institute communicates the goals set by the commiittee
throughout the system and supports individual departments,
units, and affiliate groups in meeting them.%

Several years ago the JHM Patient Safety and Quality Board
Committee took a look at its original charter, which laid ont the
goal that JHM hospitals should strive to be “above average” in terms
of quality and safety. Committee members decided that “above
average” was not good enough, and that the real goal for JHM
hospitals should be to become “national leaders” in these areas,
The committee identified preventable harm, including both deaths
and injuries, as the number-one priority, and laid out the ambi-
tious goal of partnering with patients, their loved ones, and others
to end preventable harm, continuously improve patient outcomes
and experience, and eliminate waste in healthcare, After reviewing
performance in various areas, the JHM Patient Safety and Quality
Board Committee created a common platform on which to drive
patient safety and quality. Previously, each hospital had its own
set of measures, datasets, and associated goals and objectives.
'The committee created uniform accountability throughout the
organization by identifying a common set of measurable, report-
able metrics and associated goals and objectives. For example,
in recent years the focus has been on CMS core measures, hand
hygiene, hospital-acquired conditions, patient safety indicators,
quality-based reimbursement measures, central line-associated
bloodstream infections, surgical site infections, and patient experi-
ence measures, Soite measures are reported monthly, while others
are reported quarterly.54

Cascading Levels of Accountability

The JHM Patient Safety and Quality Board Committee only
becomes involved in working with an underperforming entity
if that entity fails to bring performance into line for three con-
secutive reporting periods, and the full JHM board becomes
involved only after four reporting periods. This approach mir-
rors that tised by the finance committee of the full JHM board.
It is an explicit accountability model that brings in additional
oversight the longer an entity fails to meet its goals. Recently
the JHM Patient Safety and Quality Board Committee became
involved in addressing ED wait times at Johns Hopkins Hospital

63 PJ. Pronovost, M. Armstrong, and R. Demski R, et al., “Creating a
High-Reliability Health System: Improving Performance on Core
Processes of Care at Johns Hopkins Medicine,” Academic Medicine, Vol.
90, No. 2 (February 2015); pp. 165-172.

64 PJ. Pranovost, et al., May 2015.

Maximizing the Effectiveness of the Board's Quality Committee 13

Oo

f 56



(JHM’s main inpatient facility). Performance deteriorated to the
point that it was affecting patient satisfaction and health. The
hospital attempted to address the issue, but performance con-
tinued to lag, after which the hospital was required to report to
the committee about its action plan to address the issue. The plan
worked and wait times fell, but then they began climbing again.
This deterioration in performance led to a lengthy telephone
call during which committee members and hospital leaders dis-
cussed a new game plan for improvement. (Due to the urgency of
theissue, the committee chair did not want to wait until the next
quarterly meeting to discuss.) The board quality committee will
continne to monitor performance and the issue will remain on
its agenda until improvement oceurs and targets are met. Similar
interventions by the board quality committee have occurred in
other areas, including bloodstream infections in the pediatric
intensive care unit and patient experience ratings on room clean-
liness and nurse communication at several hospitals. In each
case, the board quality committee chair held between-meeting
phone calls with relevant parties to make sure that improve-
ment plans were put into place. These plans were then reviewed
and performance monitored at subseguent quarterly committee
meetings, and they will remain on the board agenda until per-
formance targets have been met.

Committee Size and Composition

The committee currently inchudes five JHM board members (out
of more than 30 individuals who serve on the full JHM board),
the presidents of JHM's five hospitals, the chairs of each of the
five hospitals’ board quality committees, four presidents of JHM
affiliates, and the chair of the patient and family advisory com-
mittee.® Only the JHM board members have the right to vote
on any formal actions or recommendations taken by the com-
miitee. Historically the JHM board chair served as chair of
the committee, but these two positions are not formally tied
together. The committee charter does not place strict require-
ments on who can serve on the committee, with the JHM board
chair making recommendations about the size and composition
of the committee, including which members have voting rights.
The current chair of the committee is a past chair of the JHM
board who retired from the full board but continues to serve as
an honorary trustee.

The other board members serving on the committee have
varying backgrounds, including physicians and individuals with
business backgrounds. Non-voting members of the committee
include an expert in the Malcolm Baldrige National Quality
Award, a reporter with experience in healthcare quality issues,
a nurse, and an individual who runs a manufacturing company
and hence has familiarity with QI processes such as Lean and
Six Sigma.

65 PJ. Pronovast, et al., February 2015.

14 Maximizing the Effectiveness of the Beard's Quality Committee

Meeting Frequency, Agenda, and Other Logistics

Frequency: The JHM Patient Safety and Quality Board Com-

mittee meets four times a year for approximately two and a half

hours. Replicating a process used by the finance committee,

the JHM Patient Safety and Quality Board Committee created a

performance subcommittee made up of four trustees that meet

with all entity presidents a few days before each full committee
meeting to review performance on all safety and quality met-
rics. Much: like the audit subcommittee of a board finance com-
mittee, this performance subcommittee digs into the “weeds”
of quality and safety performance, analyzing issues and making
recommendations to the full quality committee. This strategy
frees up discussion time at the full committee meeting.66 Prior
to creating this subcommittee, the full committee met for four
and a half hours each quarter, which proved too long to ensure

a productive meeting,57
Agenda and Reporting: Prior to each meeting, the entity

presidents and the director of the Armstrong Institute {cur-
rently Dr. Pronovost) hold a conference call to identify topics
of concern. After that call, the committee chair and the director
of the Armstrong Institute discuss what the board members on
the quality committee would most like to discuss at the meeting.
Based on those discussions, a formal agenda is put together. The
typical meeting includes brief presentations from two entity
presidents. The JHM Patient Safety and Quality Beard Committee
requires that a standard format be used, known as MD&A {which
stands for management, discussion, and analysis). Each report
includes both qualitative and quantitative information related to
performance, providing a vehicle to discuss opportunities to do
better. Used by all departments throughout JHM, the standard-
ized MD&A template is summarized briefly below:

« Palient safety/internal risk: An overview of the entity's great-
est risks and steps being taken to address them.

» Exiernally reported measures: An overview of one or two
high-priority externally reported measures where perfor-
mance is not meeting target, along with any other externally
reported measures where performance is not meeting target.

66 PJ. Pronovost, et al., May 2015,
67 Interview with Peter Pronovost, M.D. and Michael Armstrong, Johns
Hopkins Medicine, July 10, 2015,

Call Toll Free (877) 712-8778 » Governancelnstitute.com

1 of 56



+ Patient experience: An overview of three patient experience
domains not meeting target.

+ Enhancing value: An overview of cost-reduction efforts that
maintain or improve quality.

« Shared learning; Sharing oflessons learned (including identi-
fication of something implemented at the local level in which
leaders take great pride) and a discussion of needed support
at the health system level.

“Quality committee meetings are not just
‘rah-ral’ sessions, but rather a vehicle to
discuss opportunities to do better,

—C. Michael Armstrong, Chair, JHM Patient
Safety and Quality Board Committee

Mission Health

Background

Based in Asheville, NC, Mission Health operates six hospitals,
including Mission Hospital (a 795-bed flagship facility), along
with numerous outpatient and surgery centers, a post-acute care
provider, and the region’s only dedicated Level [l trauma center.
Over a decade ago, the Mission Health board created a robust
quality committee that is the mosi active of any board com-
mittee, The committee acts as the board quality committee both
for Mission Health and Mission Hospital.

Charter and Scope of Board Quality Committee

The board quality committee plays a central rele in shaping and
approving the annual organizational improvement plan, which
lays out the QI priorities for the upcoming year in each of five key
areas identified by the full board as important: outcomes, waste/
efficiency, safety, patient satisfaction, and organizational learning,
Senior management takes the lead in developing the plan, with the
hoard gquality committee working with these leaders to develop
priority areas and associated performance goals. The committee
formally assesses the plan, works with management to revise it as
appropriate, and then sends a recommended plan to the full board
for final approval, The performance metrics and targets included
in the plan tie into the incentive compensation plan for senior
executives and management.

Committee Size and Composition

The committee includes six members of the Mission Health
board (out of 19 total board members) along with 4 number of
others not on the board, particularly physicians who have other
responsibilities related to quality and safety. All comrmittee
members have the right to vote on any formal actions taken by
the committee.

GovernanceInstitute.com « Call Toll Free (877) 712-8778

Five of the six board members who serve on the quality com-
mittee are physicians, including four practicing physicians and
the chief executive officer (CEQ) of the health system, who is
an ex officio member of the board. The sixth board member is
a community representative with a background in engineering.
Non-board members who serve on the board quality committee
tend to be physicians with responsibility for quality and safety
elsewhere in the organization. To encourage greater levels of
integration across the system, the board quality committee
also invites relevant stakeholders to be "visitors™ at committee
meetings, including the chairs of the board quality committees
at all affiliated hospitals. Senior clinicians and administrators,
including the CMO, CNO, chief quality officer, and other front-
line leaders, generally attend board quality committee meetings,
playing aleadership role in identifying specific Ql opportunities,
appropriate goals for each of these opportunities, and accompa-
nying metrics and monitoring systems to gauge progress toward
achieving them. As with the full board, committee members
focus on asking the right questions and making sure the organi-
zation has the resources it needs to succeed.®s To encourage fur-
ther input, the board quality committee held a special meeting
to identify the strengths and needs of various stakeholders; this
meeting highlighted the need for greater system support for local
hospitals in the area of risk analyses.

Meeting Frequency, Agenda, and Other Logistics
Frequency: The guality committee meets every other month
for approximately one and a half to two hours. The full Mission
Health system board holds meetings on a quarterly basis, along
with seven additional less formal meetings, known as “fireside
chats”

Agenda and Reporting: Each board quality committee
meeting follows a standard agenda. After a review of the pre-
vious meeting and approval of the minutes from that meeting,
the first substantive portion focuses on one of the four key pri-
ority areas included in the dashboard—outcomes, waste/effi-
ciency, safety, and patient satisfaction. For example, the June
2015 meeting included a 20-minute panel with patients who
shared their ideas about how the health system could improve
the patient experience. Other standard sections of the meeting
include the following:

+ Discussion and dialogue about safety events, including
sentinel events: The hospital-based quality oversight com-
mittee submits a regular report to the board quality com-
mittee that describes every safety event, root-cause analysis
{RCA) from that event, and what actions have been taken to
address the problem(s) that led to the event. Discussion tends
to focus on those rare events where follow-up action or con-
tinued monitoring is required.

+ Review of the performance dashboard: The focus tends
to be on issues where performance has been lagging over
a period of time. For example, concerns recently arose

68 L. Stepmick, 2014.

Maximizing the Effectiveness of the Board’s Quality Committee _ 15

2 of 56



among committee members about levels of patient satisfac-
tion in the Mission Hospital ED, the busiest ED in the Caroli-
nas. While Mission is building a new ED that will address this
issue over the long term, short-term issues remain, including
long waiting times to get admitted to the hospital. Discussion
of the issue uncovered the root cause of the problem—the
failure to clean rooms promptly after patient discharge. Con-
sequently, to stimulate improvement, the board quality com-
mittee has been monitoring performance on room cleaning
and ED boarding times.

Regular performance reports monitor progress toward
established targets for each of the priority areas. The board
quality committee receives more detailed information than
does the full board, with the guality committee generally
deciding what the full board needs to see. Reports come ont
at least a week before meetings so as to ensure that both the
quality committee and the full board have ample time for dis-
cussion.

Interactions with the Full Board: The Mission Health
board receives the full minutes from each board quality com-
mittee meeting as part of its standard packet. During each
quality committee meeting, members discuss what issues
should likely flow up to the full board for discussion, with
the committee chair making the final call on which issues to
inglude in the formal committee presentation to the board,
which typically takes up roughly 15 to 2o minutes of the full
board meeting.

E ... ______________________________________]
Separate Credentialing Committee

Several members of the Mission Health board gquality committee
serve on a separate credentialing committee that has, over time,
hegun to functien as a system-wide committee, ensuring consis-
tency across hospitals and ambulatory sites on the best-practice
standards to be used for granting privileges. The various hospitai
boards have delegated final approval of credentialing activities
to this committee.

KishHealth System

Background

Based in DeKalb, I, KishHealth System is a community-owned
health system with facilities in DeKalb, Sandwich, Sycamore,
Plano, Genoa, Hampshire, Waterman, and Rochelle. The system
has two hospitals: Kishwaukee Hospital, located in DeKalb, a
g8-bed replacement facility that opened in October 2007, and
Valley West Hospital, a critical access hospital in Sandwich
that became part of the system in 1998. In addition to offering
a full array of inpatient services at its two hospitals, the health
system owns a multi-specialty practice with over 40 healthcare

16 Maximizing the Effectiveness of the Board’s Quality Commiitee

providers in several locations and offers hospice, home health,
and behavioral health services.

Charter and Scope of Board Quality Committee

The full KishHealth board established the board Quality and Cre-
dentialing Committee (QCC) in 2007. As its name implies, the
QCC has two primary tasks: to monitor, oversee, and promote
quality of care throughout the systemn, and to oversee the cre-
dentialing of physicians. In this first role, the committee spends
much of its time sifting through data from throughout the health
system to evaluate performance versus established targets on a
dashboard of key quality indicators, with performance reviewed
on a monthly basis to make sure that goals are being met.

Committee Size and Composition

Five of the 13 members on the full KishHealth System board of
directors serve on the QCC, including the system CEO (who is a
full voting member of the board). These five board members com-
prise a majority of the nine individuals who serve on the com-
mittee, with other members being the chief of staff at each of the
two hospitals and the system CMO and CNO. All QCC members
have the right to vote on any formal recommendations to come
out of the committee, with the CNO having been given voting
privileges relatively recently. Aboard member generally serves as
the chair of QCC. In most cases, the beard chair and system CEQ
make recommendations as to who should chair and serve on the
QCC. These decisions are informed by interviews conducted by
the board chair with each board member to discuss individual
strengths and interests.

Meeting Frequency, Agenda, and Other Logistics
Frequency: The QCC meets every month for approximately
one hour, on the Monday before the monthly meeting of the fuil
board, which takes place on a Wednesday.

Agenda and Reporting: While a portion of the agenda during
some months is taken up by routine credentialing activities, the
bulk of most QCC meetings focus on a review of performance
against a dashboard of quality and patient safety metrics. The
CMO and his team have established a matrix that lays out a
schedule of which components of quality and patient safety
should be reviewed by the QCC each month, including which
dashboard measures should garner particular attention. As nec-
essary, each meeting also includes a review of any current or past
sentinel events, with a focus on how issues identified in the RCA
are being addressed. (Whenever a sentinel event occurs, a formal
process commences that includes immediate notification of the
system risk manager, the QCC chair, and the CEO; the initiation of
an RCA to identify the underlying cause(s); and the development
of plans to address the identified causes, such as policy changes
or staff/physician education.)

In those cases where performance may be below target, the
QCC will spend time brainstorming how to address the issue.
For example, recent data highlighted an opportunity to improve
patient satisfaction scores, particularly in the area of commu-
nication between patients and physicians/staff. Subsequent

Call Toll Free (877) 712-8778 « Governancelnstitute.com

3 of 56



discussions by the QCC identified daily patient rounding as a
strategy to improve performance. The CEQ and management
team have worked to implement this practice, and scores have
begun to improve in sorne areas. QCC members recognize that it
will take longer (roughly 10 months) before widespread improve-
ment occurs, and consequently they continue to monitor perfor-
mance closely and will insist on additional changes ifnecessary
in order to reach established targets.

In addition to time spent reviewing performance, the typical
QCCmeeting also includes a brief review and update on the sys-
tem’s major quality initiatives,

Education and Training: QCC members regularly partici-
pate in educational activities related to quality, at an intensity
level greater than that provided to the full board. Representative
topics include briefings on the just-calture concept, the Medi-
care PQRS, value-based purchasing, preventable readmissions,
and data collection and reporting. The CMO and CNO gener-
ally present these topics, with other internal staff brought in as
needed. For example, the system’s risk manager led a session on
just culture while the director of quality conducted a review of
PQRS.

Interactions with the Full Board and Senior/Clinical Man-
agement: The minutes and recommendations from each QCC
meeting generally become part of the consent agenda for that

Governancefnstitute.com « Call Toll Free (877) 712-8778

month’s full board meeting. In addition, the full board meeting
typically includes a presentation and discussion related to
one priority item from that month’'s QCC meeting, In total, the
quality component of the full board meeking typically takes at
least 15 minutes and sometimes can last for 3o minutes or longer.
(Full board meetings generally last roughly two hours.)

The QCC regularly interacts with senior clinical and admin-
istrative leaders within KishHealth. Four years ago, KishHealth
created the Physician Quality Cabinet (PQC), a multi-specialty
group of eight physicians from different specialties who work to
move the system forward on guality and QI. The PQC and QCC
regularly interact and work together to promote QL For example,
the CMO chairs the PQC and also sits on the QCC: in addition, a
board member who sits on the QCC also participates on the PQC.

Several years ago, KishHealth created a “dyad” approach to
managing different departments. At the system level, the CMO
and CNO work together as a dyad. The same approach is being
used in various departments, with a physician leader being
paired with a non-physician clinical lead in the ED, anesthesia,
radiology, obstetrics, and cardiolagy. The CMO-CNO dyad hosts
monthly meetings with these department dyads to review QI
initiatives, patient complaints, and other related issues. These
efforts then “role up” to the PQC and the QCC.

Mauximizing the Effectiveness of the Board’s Quality Comumittee 17

4 of 56



18 Maximizing the Effectiveness of the Board’s Quality Committee

L3

R MiIX

Papgr from
rasponsibie sources
EFSC

weatscg - FSC® C013371

Call Toll Free (877) 712-8778 « Governancelnstitute.com

5 of 56



56 of 56



	Cover Page
	AGENDA
	12/16/15 Quality Agenda

	5.	APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	10/20/15 DRAFT Minutes

	6.	ITEMS FOR COMMITTEE DISCUSSION AND/OR RECOMMENDATION
	6.1.	Quality Committee Goals 2015 & Charter
	Charter
	Goals

	6.2.	Patient & Family Centered Care (PFCC)
	6.2.1. PFCC Update

	6.3.	Patient Satisfaction Surveys
	Ambulatory Surgery Survey
	Emergency Dept IVCH Survey
	Emergency Dept TFHD Survey
	Inpatient Services Survey
	MSC Survey
	Outpatient Services Survey

	6.4.	Beta Disclosure & Communication Program
	6.5.	Annual Board Policy Review
	ABD-20 Patient Satisfaction

	6.6.	Board Quality Education
	Governance Institute White Paper



